BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL BUDGET & FINANCE COMMITTEE
SPECIAL MEETING

Thursday, May 4, 2023
9:00 AM

2180 Milvia Street, 1st Floor — Cypress Room

Committee Members:

Mayor Jesse Arreguin, Councilmembers Rashi Kesarwani and Kate Harrison
Alternate: Councilmember Sophie Hahn

This meeting will be conducted in a hybrid model with both in-person attendance and virtual
participation. For in-person attendees, face coverings or masks that cover both the nose and the
mouth are encouraged. If you are feeling sick, please do not attend the meeting in person.

Remote participation by the public is available through Zoom. To access the meeting remotely
using the internet: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device: Use URL -
https://cityofberkeley-info.zoomgov.com/j/1613420519. If you do not wish for your name to
appear on the screen, then use the drop down menu and click on "rename" to rename yourself
to be anonymous. To request to speak, use the “raise hand” icon on the screen. To join by
phone: Dial 1-669-254-5252 or 1-833-568-8864 (Toll Free) and Enter Meeting ID:
161 342 0519. If you wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, press
*9 and wait to be recognized by the Chair.

To submit a written communication for the Committee’s consideration and inclusion in the public
record, email policycommittee@berkeleyca.gov.

Written communications submitted by mail or e-mail to the Budget & Finance Committee by
5:00 p.m. the Friday before the Committee meeting will be distributed to the members of the
Committee in advance of the meeting and retained as part of the official record.

Thursday, May 4, 2023 AGENDA Page 1
Page 1


https://cityofberkeley-info.zoomgov.com/j/1613420519
mailto:policycommittee@berkeleyca.gov

AGENDA

Roll Call

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters

Minutes for Approval

Draft minutes for the Committee's consideration and approval.

1. Minutes — April 20, 2023 (special) and April 27, 2023 (regular)

Committee Action Items

The public may comment on each item listed on the agenda for action as the item is taken up. The Chair
will determine the number of persons interested in speaking on each item. Up to ten (10) speakers may
speak for two minutes. If there are more than ten persons interested in speaking, the Chair may limit the
public comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker.

Following review and discussion of the items listed below, the Committee may continue an item to a future
committee meeting, or refer the item to the City Council.

2. Measure T1 Funding Gap (Item contains supplemental material)
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Receive a presentation on Measure T1 Phase 2 Project funding
recommendations and update on the City's capital improvement projects, and
provide direction to staff.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Sharon Friedrichsen, Budget Manager, (510) 981-7000; Scott Ferris, Parks,
Recreation and Waterfront, (510) 981-6700; Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-
6300

3. Second Amendment to the FY 2023 Annual Appropriations Ordinance (Item
contains supplemental material)
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Receive a report on the City’s second amendment to the FY
2023 Annual Appropriations Ordinance and provide comment to staff prior to the
report being submitted for the May 9, 2023 Council meeting.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Sharon Friedrichsen, Budget Manager, (510) 981-7000

4, FY 2024 Mid-Biennial Budget Update (Item contains supplemental material)
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Receive a presentation on the FY 2024 Mid-Biennial Budget
Update and provide direction.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Sharon Friedrichsen, Budget Manager, (510) 981-7000

Thursday, May 4, 2023 AGENDA Page 2
Page 2



Committee Action Items

5. Measure P FY 24 Mid-Biennial Update (Item contains supplemental material)
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Receive a presentation on recommended changes to the
Measure P program budget for FY 2024 and provide direction.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Peter Radu, City Manager's Office, (510) 981-7000

Unscheduled Items

These items are not scheduled for discussion or action at this meeting. The Committee may schedule
these items to the Action Calendar of a future Committee meeting.

6. Additional Allocation of Measure P Funding to “ Step Up Housing” Project
From: Councilmember Bartlett (Author), Councilmember Wengraf (Co-
Sponsor), Councilmember Kesarwani (Co-Sponsor)

Referred: August 3, 2022

Due: May 31, 2023

Recommendation: Adopt a resolution allocating an additional $114,660 per year for
10 years, from Measure P transfer tax receipts to support the increased costs for the
lease and operation of a new permanent supportive housing project for the
unhoused at the Step-Up Housing Project at 1367 University Avenue. In addition,
refer to the next meeting of the Budget and Finance Policy Committee to confirm the
availability of requested funding.

On August 3, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 70,491-N.S. as
amended and referred to the Budget & Finance Committee to consider future
General Fund needs for this project and confirm availability of funds for the operating
budget.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Ben Bartlett, Councilmember, District 3, (510) 981-7130

7a. Recommendation for RV Lot and Waste Management on Streets for RVs
From: Homeless Services Panel of Experts
Referred: April 11, 2023
Due: September 26, 2023
Recommendation: The Homeless Services Panel of Experts recommends to
Council that they refer to staff to expedite all efforts to identify a location for another
RV lot(s) to take the place of the now closed SPARK lot at 742 Grayson and that the
new lot identified require mandatory safety inspections and fire extinguishers to be
provided. The Homeless Services Panel of Experts further recommends that Council
refer to staff to develop a waste management plan to be implemented for RVs
currently on the streets.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Josh Jacobs, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-5400

Thursday, May 4, 2023 AGENDA Page 3
Page 3



Unscheduled Items

7b. Companion Report to Recommendation for RV Lot and Waste Management on
Streets for RVs
From: City Manager
Referred: April 11, 2023
Due: September 26, 2023
Recommendation: Refer the Homeless Services Panel of Experts’ recommendation
to identify and expedite a new safe RV parking location/program and develop a
waste management plan for RVs on the streets to the Budget and Finance Policy
Committee for consideration alongside all other homeless services priorities in the
budget process.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Peter Radu, City Manager's Office, (510) 981-7000

8a. Referral of two health educator positions to the COB FY 2024 budget process
From: Peace and Justice Commission
Referred: April 11, 2023
Due: September 26, 2023
Recommendation: Refer to the budget process a request for estimated $150,000
annually, beginning in FY 2024 or as early as the AAO #2 process in spring 2023, for
staffing, materials, and supplies to be able to more broadly and flexibly conduct
health education, prevention, and outreach to reduce health disparities, as proposed
by the Peace and Justice Commission.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Okeya Vance-Dozier, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-7100

8b. Companion Report: Referral of two health educator positions to the COB FY
2024 budget process
From: City Manager
Referred: April 11, 2023
Due: September 26, 2023
Recommendation: Refer to the Peace and Justice Commission’s request for
$150,000 annually for staffing, materials, and supplies for health education and
outreach to the Budget and Finance Policy Committee for further deliberation.
Financial Implications: None
Contact: Peter Radu, City Manager's Office, (510) 981-7000

9. Investment Report Update - Investment Policies of Other Jurisdictions
From: City Manager
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300

10. COVID-19 Emergency Rental Assistance; Presentation from the Eviction
Defense Center
From: City Manager
Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400

Thursday, May 4, 2023 AGENDA Page 4
Page 4



Unscheduled Items

11. Russell Street Residence Update
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Receive a presentation on funding options to support the
requisition of the Russell Streets Residence and provide direction to staff.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400

12. Accept the Risk Analysis for Long-Term Debt (Bonding Capacity) Report
provided by Government Finance Officers Association (Item contains
supplemental material)

From: City Manager

Referred: April 26, 2022

Due: May 31, 2023

Recommendation: Accept the report titled ‘Risk-Based Analysis and Stress Test of
Long-Term Debt Affordability’ as provided by the Government Finance Officers
Association (GFOA). This report is based on their research and development of a
risk-modeling tool to address issuing long-term debt related to City of Berkeley Vision
2050.

On April 26, 2022, the City Council referred this item to the City Manager and Budget
& Finance Committee to return to Council with recommendations or analysis on as
many of the following items as possible by October 2022, if feasible. 1)
Consideration of reserves policies for operational funds other than the General Fund;
2) Potential reduction of the maximum indebtedness rate from 15% of assessed
property value down to 4-8% range; 3) A new policy to not incur indebtedness when
interest rates go above 5% or a different specific threshold; 4) Tools for increased
transparency for taxpayers; 5) Updated report and discussion of pension and
healthcare costs; 6) Refer the full Report to the Budget & Finance Committee for
consideration.

Financial Implications: None

Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300

Items for Future Agendas

e Requests by Committee Members to add items to future agendas

Adjournment

Thursday, May 4, 2023 AGENDA Page 5
Page 5



Written communications addressed to the Budget & Finance Committee and submitted to the City Clerk
Department will be distributed to the Committee prior to the meeting.

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953 and
applicable Executive Orders as issued by the Governor that are currently in effect. Members of the City
Council who are not members of the standing committee may attend a standing committee meeting even
if it results in a quorum being present, provided that the non-members only act as observers and do not
participate in the meeting. If only one member of the Council who is not a member of the committee is
present for the meeting, the member may participate in the meeting because less than a quorum of the
full Council is present. Any member of the public may attend this meeting. Questions regarding this
matter may be addressed to Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900.

This meeting is being held in a wheelchair accessible location. To request a disability-related

accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or services, please

contact the Disability Services specialist at (510) 981-6418 (V) or (510) 981-6347 (TDD) at
least three business days before the meeting date. Attendees at public meetings are reminded that other
attendees may be sensitive to various scents, whether natural or manufactured, in products and
materials. Please help the City respect these needs.

E COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION:

| hereby certify that the agenda for this meeting of the Standing Committee of the Berkeley City Council
was posted at the display case located near the walkway in front of the Maudelle Shirek Building, 2134
Martin Luther King Jr. Way, as well as on the City’s website, on Friday, April 28, 2023.

27

Mark Numainville, City Clerk

Communications

Communications submitted to City Council Policy Committees are on file in the City Clerk Department at
2180 Milvia Street, 1st Floor, Berkeley, CA, and are available upon request by contacting the City Clerk
Department at (510) 981-6908 or policycommittee @berkeleyca.gov.

Thursday, May 4, 2023 AGENDA Page 6

Page 6


mailto:policycommittee@berkeleyca.gov

Page 1 of 12

BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL BUDGET & FINANCE COMMITTEE
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES

Thursday, April 20, 2023
10:00 AM

2180 Milvia Street, 6th Floor - Redwood Room

Claremont Conference Room (CR 112), 375 Beale Street, 1st Floor,
San Francisco, CA 94105 - Teleconference Location

Committee Members:

Mayor Jesse Arreguin, Councilmembers Rashi Kesarwani and Kate Harrison
Alternate: Councilmember Sophie Hahn

This meeting will be conducted in a hybrid model with both in-person attendance and virtual
participation. For in-person attendees, face coverings or masks that cover both the nose and the
mouth are encouraged. If you are feeling sick, please do not attend the meeting in person.

Remote participation by the public is available through Zoom. To access the meeting remotely
using the internet: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device: Use URL -
https://cityofberkeley-info.zoomgov.com/j/1605536147. If you do not wish for your name to appear
on the screen, then use the drop down menu and click on "rename" to rename yourself to be
anonymous. To request to speak, use the “raise hand” icon on the screen. To join by phone: Dial
1-669-254-5252 or 1-833-568-8864 (Toll Free) and Enter Meeting ID: 160 553 6147. If you wish
to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, press *9 and wait to be recognized
by the Chair.

To submit a written communication for the Committee’s consideration and inclusion in the public
record, email policycommittee@cityofberkeley.info.

Written communications submitted by mail or e-mail to the Budget & Finance Committee by 5:00
p.m. the Friday before the Committee meeting will be distributed to the members of the Committee
in advance of the meeting and retained as part of the official record.

Thursday, April 20, 2023 MINUTES Page 1

01

Page 7


https://cityofberkeley-info.zoomgov.com/j/1605536147
mailto:policycommittee@cityofberkeley.info
sbunting
Typewritten Text
01


Page 2 of 12

MINUTES
Roll Call:  10:03 a.m.
Present: Harrison, Arreguin
Absent: Kesarwani

Councilmember Kesarwani arrived at 10:06 a.m.

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters: 4 speakers

Minutes for Approval

Draft minutes for the Committee's consideration and approval.

1. Minutes - March 9, 2023
Action: M/S/C (Harrison/Kesarwani) to approve the March 9, 2023 minutes.
Vote: All Ayes.

Committee Action Items

The public may comment on each item listed on the agenda for action as the item is taken up. The Chair
will determine the number of persons interested in speaking on each item. Up to ten (10) speakers may
speak for two minutes. If there are more than ten persons interested in speaking, the Chair may limit the
public comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker.

Following review and discussion of the items listed below, the Committee may continue an item to a future
committee meeting, or refer the item to the City Council.

2. Measure T1 Phase 2 Projects
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Receive a presentation on Measure T1 Phase 2 Project funding
recommendations and update on the City's capital improvement projects, and
provide direction to staff.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, (510) 981-6700
Sharon Friedrichsen, Budget Manager, (510) 981-7000
Action: 10 speakers. Presentation made. Discussion held. Iltem continued to a
special meeting on May 4.

3. Second Amendment to the FY 2023 Annual Appropriations Ordinance
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Receive a report on the recommended amendments to the FY
2023 Annual Appropriations Ordinance and provide direction.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Sharon Friedrichsen, Budget Manager, (510) 981-7000
Action: Item continued to a special meeting on May 4.

Thursday, April 20, 2023 MINUTES Page 2
Page 8



Page 3 of 12

Committee Action Items

Recommendation on Climate, Building Electrification, and Sustainable
Transportation Budget Priorities for Fiscal Year 2023 and 2024

From: Energy Commission

Referred: November 3, 2022

Due: April 25, 2023

Recommendation: The Energy Commission recommends that the Berkeley City
Council prioritize and include in the City’s budget for the Fiscal Years Ending (FYE)
2023 and 2024 several staff positions, pilot projects, investments in electric vehicles
and charging infrastructure, and other measures to ensure that the City’s budget is
aligned with and provides adequate and needed funding to implement the City’s
adopted Climate Action Plan, Electric Mobility Roadmap, Building Emissions Saving
Ordinance, 2019 ban on gas in new construction, and the Existing Buildings
Electrification Strategy.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Billi Romain, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-7400

Action: No action taken.

Unscheduled Items

These items are not scheduled for discussion or action at this meeting. The Committee may schedule
these items to the Action Calendar of a future Committee meeting.

5. Investment Report Update - Investment Policies of Other Jurisdictions
From: City Manager
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300

Thursday, April 20, 2023 MINUTES Page 3
Page 9



Page 4 of 12

Unscheduled Items

Accept the Risk Analysis for Long-Term Debt (Bonding Capacity) Report
provided by Government Finance Officers Association

From: City Manager

Referred: April 26, 2022

Due: May 31, 2023

Recommendation: Accept the report titled ‘Risk-Based Analysis and Stress Test of
Long-Term Debt Affordability’ as provided by the Government Finance Officers
Association (GFOA). This report is based on their research and development of a
risk-modeling tool to address issuing long-term debt related to City of Berkeley Vision
2050.

On April 26, 2022, the City Council referred this item to the City Manager and Budget
& Finance Committee to return to Council with recommendations or analysis on as
many of the following items as possible by October 2022, if feasible. 1)
Consideration of reserves policies for operational funds other than the General Fund;
2) Potential reduction of the maximum indebtedness rate from 15% of assessed
property value down to 4-8% range; 3) A new policy to not incur indebtedness when
interest rates go above 5% or a different specific threshold; 4) Tools for increased
transparency for taxpayers; 5) Updated report and discussion of pension and
healthcare costs; 6) Refer the full Report to the Budget & Finance Committee for
consideration.

Financial Implications: None

Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300

Additional Allocation of Measure P Funding to “Step Up Housing” Project
From: Councilmember Bartlett (Author), Councilmember Wengraf (Co-
Sponsor), Councilmember Kesarwani (Co-Sponsor)

Referred: August 3, 2022

Due: May 31, 2023

Recommendation: Adopt a resolution allocating an additional $114,660 per year for
10 years, from Measure P transfer tax receipts to support the increased costs for the
lease and operation of a new permanent supportive housing project for the
unhoused at the Step-Up Housing Project at 1367 University Avenue. In addition,
refer to the next meeting of the Budget and Finance Policy Committee to confirm the
availability of requested funding.

On August 3, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 70,491-N.S. as
amended and referred to the Budget & Finance Committee to consider future
General Fund needs for this project and confirm availability of funds for the operating
budget.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Ben Bartlett, Councilmember, District 3, (510) 981-7130

Fire Department Vacancy and Overtime
From: City Manager
Contact: David Sprague, Fire, (510) 981-3473

Thursday, April 20, 2023 MINUTES Page 4
Page 10



Page 5 of 12

Unscheduled Items

9a. Recommendation for RV Lot and Waste Management on Streets for RVs
From: Homeless Services Panel of Experts
Referred: April 11, 2023
Due: September 26, 2023
Recommendation: The Homeless Services Panel of Experts recommends to
Council that they refer to staff to expedite all efforts to identify a location for another
RV lot(s) to take the place of the now closed SPARK lot at 742 Grayson and that the
new lot identified require mandatory safety inspections and fire extinguishers to be
provided. The Homeless Services Panel of Experts further recommends that Council
refer to staff to develop a waste management plan to be implemented for RVs
currently on the streets.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Josh Jacobs, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-5400

9b. Companion Report to Recommendation for RV Lot and Waste Management on
Streets for RVs
From: City Manager
Referred: April 11, 2023
Due: September 26, 2023
Recommendation: Refer the Homeless Services Panel of Experts’ recommendation
to identify and expedite a new safe RV parking location/program and develop a
waste management plan for RVs on the streets to the Budget and Finance Policy
Committee for consideration alongside all other homeless services priorities in the
budget process.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Peter Radu, City Manager's Office, (510) 981-7000

10a. Referral of two health educator positions to the COB FY 2024 budget process
From: Peace and Justice Commission
Referred: April 11, 2023
Due: September 26, 2023
Recommendation: Refer to the budget process a request for estimated $150,000
annually, beginning in FY 2024 or as early as the AAO #2 process in spring 2023, for
staffing, materials, and supplies to be able to more broadly and flexibly conduct
health education, prevention, and outreach to reduce health disparities, as proposed
by the Peace and Justice Commission.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Okeya Vance-Dozier, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-7100

Thursday, April 20, 2023 MINUTES Page 5
Page 11



Page 6 of 12

Unscheduled Items

10b. Companion Report: Referral of two health educator positions to the COB FY
2024 budget process
From: City Manager
Referred: April 11, 2023
Due: September 26, 2023
Recommendation: Refer to the Peace and Justice Commission’s request for
$150,000 annually for staffing, materials, and supplies for health education and
outreach to the Budget and Finance Policy Committee for further deliberation.
Financial Implications: None
Contact: Peter Radu, City Manager's Office, (510) 981-7000

Items for Future Agendas
e None

Adjournment

Action: M/S/C (Kesarwani/Harrison) to adjourn the meeting.
Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Harrison; Noes - None; Abstain - None; Absent — Arreguin.

Adjourned at 12:08 pm.

| hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct record of the Budget & Finance
Committee meeting held on April 20, 2023.

Sarah K. Bunting, Assistant City Clerk

Thursday, April 20, 2023 MINUTES Page 6
Page 12



Page 7 of 12

BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL BUDGET & FINANCE COMMITTEE
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

Thursday, April 27, 2023
10:00 AM

2180 Milvia Street, 6th Floor - Redwood Room

Committee Members:

Mayor Jesse Arreguin, Councilmembers Rashi Kesarwani and Kate Harrison
Alternate: Councilmember Sophie Hahn

This meeting will be conducted in a hybrid model with both in-person attendance and virtual
participation. For in-person attendees, face coverings or masks that cover both the nose and the
mouth are encouraged. If you are feeling sick, please do not attend the meeting in person.

Remote participation by the public is available through Zoom. To access the meeting remotely
using the internet: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device: Use URL -
https://cityofberkeley-info.zoomgov.com/j/1613406627. If you do not wish for your name to appear
on the screen, then use the drop down menu and click on "rename" to rename yourself to be
anonymous. To request to speak, use the “raise hand” icon on the screen. To join by phone: Dial
1-669-254-5252  or  1-833-568-8864  (Toll Free) and Enter  Meeting ID:
161 340 6627. If you wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, press
*9 and wait to be recognized by the Chair.

To submit a written communication for the Committee’s consideration and inclusion in the public
record, email policycommittee@cityofberkeley.info.

Written communications submitted by mail or e-mail to the Budget & Finance Committee by 5:00
p.m. the Friday before the Committee meeting will be distributed to the members of the Committee
in advance of the meeting and retained as part of the official record.

Thursday, April 27, 2023 MINUTES Page 1
Page 13


https://cityofberkeley-info.zoomgov.com/j/1613406627
mailto:policycommittee@cityofberkeley.info

Page 8 of 12

MINUTES
Roll Call: 10:04 a.m.

Present: Kesarwani, Harrison, Arreguin

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters: 4 speakers

Committee Action ltems

The public may comment on each item listed on the agenda for action as the item is taken up. The Chair
will determine the number of persons interested in speaking on each item. Up to ten (10) speakers may
speak for two minutes. If there are more than ten persons interested in speaking, the Chair may limit the
public comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker.

Following review and discussion of the items listed below, the Committee may continue an item to a future
committee meeting, or refer the item to the City Council.

Fire Department Vacancy and Overtime

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Receive a presentation on Fire Department vacancy and
overtime and provide direction.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: David Sprague, Fire, (510) 981-3473

Action: 2 speakers. Presentation made and discussion held.

2. Health, Housing, and Community Services (HHCS) Staffing Proposal

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Receive a presentation on a proposed HHSC staffing
reorganization and provide direction.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400
Action: 3 speakers. Presentation made and discussion held. M/S/C
(Arreguin/Harrison) Supporting the allocation of $463,242 in the General Fund to
implement Phases 1 and 2 of the HHCS/HCS staffing study recommendations and
looking at Measure U1 as one of the revenue sources.

Vote: All Ayes.

3. Measure P FY 24 Mid-Biennial Update

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Receive a presentation on recommended changes to the
Measure P program budget for FY 2024 and provide direction.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Peter Radu, City Manager's Office, (610) 981-7000

Action: ltem continued to a special meeting on May 4.

Thursday, April 27, 2023 MINUTES Page 2
Page 14



Page 9 of 12

Committee Action Items

FY 2024 Mid-Biennial Budget Update

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Receive a presentation on the FY 2024 Mid-Biennial Budget
Update and provide direction.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Sharon Friedrichsen, Budget Manager, (510) 981-7000

Action: Item continued to a special meeting on May 4.

Accept the Risk Analysis for Long-Term Debt (Bonding Capacity) Report
provided by Government Finance Officers Association

From: City Manager

Referred: April 26, 2022

Due: May 31, 2023

Recommendation: Accept the report titled ‘Risk-Based Analysis and Stress Test of
Long-Term Debt Affordability’ as provided by the Government Finance Officers
Association (GFOA). This report is based on their research and development of a
risk-modeling tool to address issuing long-term debt related to City of Berkeley Vision
2050.

On April 26, 2022, the City Council referred this item to the City Manager and Budget
& Finance Committee to return to Council with recommendations or analysis on as
many of the following items as possible by October 2022, if feasible. 1)
Consideration of reserves policies for operational funds other than the General Fund;
2) Potential reduction of the maximum indebtedness rate from 15% of assessed
property value down to 4-8% range; 3) A new policy to not incur indebtedness when
interest rates go above 5% or a different specific threshold; 4) Tools for increased
transparency for taxpayers; 5) Updated report and discussion of pension and
healthcare costs; 6) Refer the full Report to the Budget & Finance Committee for
consideration.

Financial Implications: None

Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300

Action: Item continued to a future meeting.

Thursday, April 27, 2023 MINUTES Page 3
Page 15



Page 10 of 12

Unscheduled Items

These items are not scheduled for discussion or action at this meeting. The Committee may schedule
these items to the Action Calendar of a future Committee meeting.

Additional Allocation of Measure P Funding to “Step Up Housing” Project
From: Councilmember Bartlett (Author), Councilmember Wengraf (Co-
Sponsor), Councilmember Kesarwani (Co-Sponsor)

Referred: August 3, 2022

Due: May 31, 2023

Recommendation: Adopt a resolution allocating an additional $114,660 per year for
10 years, from Measure P transfer tax receipts to support the increased costs for the
lease and operation of a new permanent supportive housing project for the
unhoused at the Step-Up Housing Project at 1367 University Avenue. In addition,
refer to the next meeting of the Budget and Finance Policy Committee to confirm the
availability of requested funding.

On August 3, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 70,491-N.S. as
amended and referred to the Budget & Finance Committee to consider future
General Fund needs for this project and confirm availability of funds for the operating
budget.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Ben Bartlett, Councilmember, District 3, (510) 981-7130

7a. Recommendation for RV Lot and Waste Management on Streets for RVs

From: Homeless Services Panel of Experts

Referred: April 11, 2023

Due: September 26, 2023

Recommendation: The Homeless Services Panel of Experts recommends to
Council that they refer to staff to expedite all efforts to identify a location for another
RV lot(s) to take the place of the now closed SPARK lot at 742 Grayson and that the
new lot identified require mandatory safety inspections and fire extinguishers to be
provided. The Homeless Services Panel of Experts further recommends that Council
refer to staff to develop a waste management plan to be implemented for RVs
currently on the streets.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Josh Jacobs, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-5400

Thursday, April 27, 2023 MINUTES Page 4
Page 16



Page 11 of 12

Unscheduled Items

7b. Companion Report to Recommendation for RV Lot and Waste Management on
Streets for RVs
From: City Manager
Referred: April 11, 2023
Due: September 26, 2023
Recommendation: Refer the Homeless Services Panel of Experts’ recommendation
to identify and expedite a new safe RV parking location/program and develop a
waste management plan for RVs on the streets to the Budget and Finance Policy
Committee for consideration alongside all other homeless services priorities in the
budget process.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Peter Radu, City Manager's Office, (610) 981-7000

8a. Referral of two health educator positions to the COB FY 2024 budget process
From: Peace and Justice Commission
Referred: April 11, 2023
Due: September 26, 2023
Recommendation: Refer to the budget process a request for estimated $150,000
annually, beginning in FY 2024 or as early as the AAO #2 process in spring 2023, for
staffing, materials, and supplies to be able to more broadly and flexibly conduct
health education, prevention, and outreach to reduce health disparities, as proposed
by the Peace and Justice Commission.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Okeya Vance-Dozier, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-7100

8b. Companion Report: Referral of two health educator positions to the COB FY
2024 budget process
From: City Manager
Referred: April 11, 2023
Due: September 26, 2023
Recommendation: Refer to the Peace and Justice Commission’s request for
$150,000 annually for staffing, materials, and supplies for health education and
outreach to the Budget and Finance Policy Committee for further deliberation.
Financial Implications: None
Contact: Peter Radu, City Manager's Office, (5610) 981-7000

9. Investment Report Update - Investment Policies of Other Jurisdictions
From: City Manager
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300

Thursday, April 27, 2023 MINUTES Page 5

Page 17



Page 12 of 12

Unscheduled Items

10. Measure T1 Phase 2 Projects (Item contains supplemental materials)
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Receive a presentation on Measure T1 Phase 2 Project funding
recommendations and update on the City's capital improvement projects, and
provide direction to staff.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, (510) 981-6700
Sharon Friedrichsen, Budget Manager, (510) 981-7000

11. Second Amendment to the FY 2023 Annual Appropriations Ordinance (Item
contains supplemental materials)
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Receive a report on the recommended amendments to the FY
2023 Annual Appropriations Ordinance and provide direction.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Sharon Friedrichsen, Budget Manager, (510) 981-7000

Items for Future Agendas

e None

Adjournment

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Kesarwani) to adjourn the meeting.
Vote: All Ayes.

Adjourned at 12:24 pm.

| hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct record of the Budget & Finance
Committee meeting held on April 27, 2023.

Sarah K. Bunting, Assistant City Clerk

Thursday, April 27, 2023 MINUTES Page 6
Page 18



Page 1 of 46

02

- [ CITY °F

»~

Office of the City Manager

To: City Council Budget and Finance Policy Committee
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager
Date: April 20, 2023

Submitted by: Sharon Friedrichsen, Budget Manager
Scott Ferris, Director, Parks Recreation & Waterfront
Liam Garland, Director, Public Works

Subject: Measure T1 Funding Gap

INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this memo is to help City Council identify funding for the $5.362M or
$9.062M gap for Measure T1 projects. Included in this document are discussions of
existing capital projects funded by General Fund (GF) and T1, borrowing options, GF
excess equity, public liability fund and the Capital Improvement Project (CIP) fund. Staff
made City Council aware of this gap on January 31, 2023 and City Council referred it to
the Budget and Finance Commission.

T1 FUNDING GAP

This T1 funding gap exists because of significant construction cost increases over the
last two years and unanticipated costs to the African American Holistic Resource Center
(AAHRC), Civic Center Upper Plaza Improvements — Turtle Island Monument (TIM) and
the North Berkeley Senior Center (NBSC) projects (see Attachment 1). These increases
and unanticipated costs are discussed below.

Construction Cost Increases ($981,750)

Construction costs have increased 26% over the last two years (2020 — 2022). These
increases have required staff to reduce design and construction scopes and identify
other funding sources where possible in order to complete many T1 phase 2 (T1P2)
projects. Examples of these issues can be seen in the Willard Clubhouse replacement
project and the new Ohlone ages 2-5 and 5-12 Playgrounds and Mural Garden project.
Less than 16 months ago, the Willard Clubhouse preferred conceptual design was
reduced by more than 30% in order to complete the total project with the original T1
budget allocation of $7M. The construction contract at Ohlone Park, which was recently
awarded at City Council in December of 2022, needed an additional $200,000 (or 10%
additional project funding) of PRW CIP funds in order to proceed.

Page 19


https://berkeleyca.gov/city-council-special-meeting-eagenda-january-31-2023
sbunting
Typewritten Text
02


Page 2 of 46

Unfortunately, eight T1P2 projects cannot be reduced in scope, and in fact, need an
additional 15% in funding in order to produce a baseline project. This list includes four
public restrooms, Marina Docks D&E replacement, the 1947 Center St. building
improvements, and two projects at the Corporation Yard. In total, an additional
$981,750 is needed to complete these projects.

North Berkeley Senior Center (NBSC): $350K

This $11.086M project is currently in the close-out phase and has approximately
$350,000 of existing costs that are over and above the existing project budget (T1,
FEMA grant and CIP funds). These costs include construction and legal fees incurred
to-date.

Civic Center Park Upper Plaza Improvements - Turtle Island Monument: $880K

In March of 2023, this project received approval from the Landmarks Preservation
Commission. This approval will result in the issuance of a Structural Alteration Permit
and construction in FY24. With construction cost increases and the recent scope
changes that include additional indigenous art, water and lighting elements, the cost of
the overall project has increased to $2.5M, without the artwork. It is anticipated that the
artwork, which is estimated to be in the $500,000 range, will be funded by the Civic Arts
Commission budget. This project is funded by T1, a Clean California grant, Civic Arts
and Parks Tax. This project could be reduced by $300,000 if the stonework in the upper
plaza were only partially replaced.

African American Holistic Service Center (AAHRC: $3.15M- $6.85M)

The AAHRC currently has $8.25M in total project funding (comprised of $7M T1, $225K
GF and $1M in a federal earmark). Until last year, this funding would have been enough
to complete the renovation of the 4,000 square foot city-owned building at 1890 Alcatraz
Street. With increasing construction costs and the completion of a recent engineering
assessment of the building and site (structural and geotechnical) which found significant
structural problems?, City staff recommended that this building be replaced. At the
January 31, 2023 meeting, City Council acted to eliminate the option of renovating the
existing structure at 1890 Adeline, leaving only the size of building to be determined. A
4,000 square foot building will cost an additional $3.15M and a 6,000 square foot
building will cost an additional $6.85M.

The 6,000 square foot building will allow for a community room and additional therapy
rooms and a youth space that will be used to help reduce the effects of racism.

The project architect cannot proceed with the design phase until direction on this issue
can be provided.

'Problems identified include inadequate shear capacity, diaphragm discontinuities, insufficient
anchorage and cross ties, and expansive and unknown subsurface soils.

Page 20



Page 3 of 46

CITY COUNCIL BUDGET & FINANCE POLICY COMMITTEE COMMENTS AND
QUESTIONS FROM APRIL 20 MEETING

In response to this report presented at the April 20, 2023 City Council Budget and
Finance Policy Committee meeting, Councilmembers asked multiple questions about
potential funding sources and existing projects. Staff have provided additional
clarification and information on these questions below.

1.

Is it feasible to borrow from the Workers’ Compensation Fund?

The Workers’ Compensation Fund is currently projected to have an annual
operating surplus of $3 million. However, increases in expenses, especially for
judgments and settlements, which are difficult to predict, could quickly erode the
projected surplus. In addition to supporting the annual operating costs
associated with the fund, it is important to maintain a fund balance that would be
able to cover the cost of the City’s estimated liabilities.

The City began its self-insured workers' compensation program on March 1,
1975. The City’s self-insured retention (SIR) has varied between $100,000 and
$1,000,000 prior to 2004/05 and is currently unlimited. Every two years, the City
has an actuarial review conducted to determine the outstanding liabilities and
determine the rates to use for budgeting and payroll purposes to fund the
program annually. The recent actuarial study by Bickmore Actuarial showed the
City’s estimated outstanding liabilities, as of June 30, 2023, at an 80%
confidence level to be at $46.3 million for the workers’ compensation program.
The City’s Workers’ Compensation Fund ended FY 2022 with a fund balance of
$51.7 million, meaning that the City is currently able to fund its estimated
liabilities in its Workers’ Compensation Program. However, just in 2021, the
City’s estimated liabilities were $42.4 million and the fund balance was $41.5
million, falling short of covering liabilities. This also illustrates that liabilities
increased by $3.9 million within 2 years. Further, it should be noted that the City
does still have an outstanding loan balance of $813,779 due to the WC fund from
the Premier Cru purchase.

While currently the City’s Workers’ Compensation liabilities do not exceed fund
assets, this is a relatively recent accomplishment for this fund, and a trend that
would be advisable to strive to maintain moving forward. As described above, the
fund’s assets vs. liabilities saw a notable shift of several million within just a few
years, and so maintaining a healthy balance is key to ensuring that the City does
not need to rely on the General Fund to cover the cost of one more significant
claims. Currently the City has 374 workers compensation claims, which remain to
be settled or will continue to require funds for those with future medical
expenses. Further, similar to general liability claims, it is very difficult to predict
future settlement amounts. For all of these reasons, it is not advisable to borrow
from the WC fund.

Page 21



2.

Page 4 of 46

Is it feasible to use Sewer Fund interest to fund public restrooms?

No. Per BMC 17.04.030.A, interest earned on the Sanitary Sewer Operation,
Maintenance and Replacement Fund and all its accounts shall remain in the fund
and its accounts.

Is it feasible to use the “unassigned portion of the General Fund balance in
the City’s Investment Portfolio?

The $78 million in the investment report is a single entry of assets without the
corresponding liability attached to it. It is not a fund balance or unassigned funds.
As of 6/30/2022, the investment report includes all the assigned expenditures
that have not been spent but are being invested in pool cash until they are ready
to be expensed. For instance, there is a balance of $40 million that is part of the
general operating monies that is supposed to be utilized to pay the TRAN$ that
will be due in July (TRANS$ is the Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes that the
City issued in order to pre-pay the CALPERs Unfunded Liabilities portion of our
pension cost, which was $47.5 million last year). There is also $38 million of
short-term funds needed for general operations that is part of that balance. There
are no General Fund unassigned funds sitting in the investment portfolio.

Is it feasible for the T1 funding gap to be considered for stability or
catastrophic reserve funding?

While Council has the authority to determine whether to utilize the reserve for this
purpose, staff recommends adherence to the definitions contained within the policy
as indicated below. A strict interpretation for using the reserves helps to maintain
funding when it is needed for the type of scenarios envisioned by the policy.

A Stability Reserve will be maintained to mitigate loss of service delivery
and financial risks associated with unexpected revenue shortfalls during a
single fiscal year or during a prolonged recessionary period. The purpose
of the Stability Reserve is to provide fiscal stability in response to
unexpected downturns or revenue shortfalls, and not to serve as a funding
source for new programs or projects.

A Catastrophic Reserve will be maintained for the purpose of sustaining
General Fund operations in the case of a public emergency such as a
natural disaster or other catastrophic event. The Catastrophic Reserve will
be used to respond to extreme, onetime events, such as earthquakes,
fires, floods, civil unrest, and terrorist attacks. The Catastrophic Reserve
will not be accessed to meet operational shortfalls or to fund new
programs or projects.

Most recently, Council borrowed from the stability and catastrophic reserves to
sustain operations and mitigate the loss of service delivery in light of a public
health emergency, the COVID-19 pandemic, and the related loss of revenue.
Previously, Council borrowed from the catastrophic reserve to rebuild Tuolumne
Camp after a natural disaster, the Rim Fire. The T1 shortfall is largely due to

Page 22



Page 5 of 46

increased construction costs. However, other City capital projects that are not
funded by T1 are facing the same challenge. In addition, many departments are
facing budgetary pressures as the cost of providing services are increasing from
the impact of inflation and other supply chain issues. While this situation is
influenced by the current state of the economy, it is not the scenario, such as a
recessionary period, contemplated by the reserves policy.

Is the Streetlight Fund available for funding the Ohlone Lighting project or

a portion of it?

No. The proposed lighting locations in Ohlone Park do not benefit City right of
way sufficiently to justify the use of Streetlight Fund as a funding source.

. Given staff vacancies, especially in the Public Works Engineering Division,
what is the capacity to implement projects in Attachment 3?

The table below lists the 11 currently-funded projects that are likely to be delayed
to FY25 or beyond due to staffing issues. In total, they include $1,884,283 in
remaining General Fund and CIP Fund (shown in bold below).

The postponement of the remaining two restrooms in the Restrooms in the Right
of Way project reduces the needed T1 allocation for FY24 from $2,211,750 to
$2,076,750 and increases the FY25 need by $135,000.

Project Dept Budget Amount Remaining
BerkDOT PW $184,283 (Gen Fund) | $184,283 (Gen Fund)
Convert 62nd Street Between PW $300,000 (CIP Fund) $300,000 (CIP Fund)
King Street, and Adeline Street
into a cul de sac
Implement State Law AB 43 for | PW $50,000 (CIP Fund) $50,000 (CIP Fund)
Reduced Speed Limits on High-
Injury Commercial Corridors
Business Licensing System Finance, | $500,000 (CIP Fund) $500,000 (CIP Fund)
Replacement IT
Paperless Contract Workflow Clerk, $400,000 (CIP Fund) $400,000 (CIP Fund)
System Finance,

IT
Property Tax Assessment Finance, | $450,000 (CIP Fund) $450,000 (CIP Fund)
System Replacement IT
Restrooms in the ROW (2) PW $1,200,000 (Meas T1) | $1,100,000 (Meas T1)
Emergency Power Supply Solar | PW $500,000 (Meas T1) $500,000 (Meas T1)
Batteries
Fire Station #6 Improvements PW $1,213,235 (Meas T1) | $986,835 (Meas T1)

5

Page 23



Page 6 of 46

7. How much of T1 funding of Hopkins Street was for paving?
The estimated total budget for the Hopkins Street project is $11.5M. The
Engineering Division estimates that 65% of the Hopkins proposed budget—or
$7.5M of the estimated $11.5M—is dedicated to paving, associated concrete
work, and utility adjustments. The T1 streets contribution of $6.75M would cover
a large portion of that paving cost.

8. What is the actual cost of the Cameras in the Right-of-Way Project?
The initial General Fund allocation for this project was $1,293,889. Ten locations
have been identified by City Council for these cameras. Public Works will install
the first set of cameras at 1 of the 10 intersections within the next several
months. A revised budget of $650,000 may be sufficient funding for cameras at
all 10 locations given current cost estimates, but staff will be in a better position
to assess this after completion of the first intersection in September of 2023.

9. Options 1, 2 and 3 contain $240K of FY22 Excess Equity, yet there is a
balance is $467K. Please clarify.
Staff only recommend spending $240K of FY22 Excess Equity towards the T1
funding gap in case additional funding is needed for potential unanticipated
needs.

CITY COUNCIL’S JANUARY 31 DIRECTION

The City Manager was directed to:

1. Fully fund the replacement of the African American Holistic Resource Center.

2. Fully fund the Civic Center Upper Plaza Improvements - Turtle Island Monument
project.

3. Use the following criteria and return to the City Council with options for how to
close the project funding gap: a. Prioritize projects that are public facing and
public serving; b. Prioritize projects that have matching funds; and c. Prioritize
projects that are in significant progress in the planning stage.

4. Look at all funding options including grants, General Fund excess equity, and
any additional funding sources to close the funding gap, including potentially
deferring projects that do not meet the outlined criteria.

5. Present the funding recommendations, and provide an update on the City’s
capital improvement projects, to the Budget & Finance Committee for
consideration prior to returning to the full City Council.

6. Provide recommendations for the replacement of the African American Holistic
Resource Center that reflect a 4,000 square foot project and a 6,000 square foot
project.

POSSIBLE SOLUTIONS TO T1 FUNDING GAP

The solutions to the Measure T1 Phase Two (T1P2) overage could involve finding new
funding, or reducing phase of a project (e.g., design but not construction), or deleting

6

Page 24



Page 7 of 46

certain projects from the T1P2 list. Per the T1 Operations Manual (Section 4.5), such
changes require consultation with the two Measure T1 lead commissions and action by
City Council. After discussing this gap in their March meeting, the Parks, Recreation
and Waterfront Commission took action during the April 12, 2023 meeting to suggest
options for alternative funding (see Attachment 2). The Transportation and
Infrastructure Commission discussed this item at their January and February 2023
meetings and did not take any action.

Halfway through Measure T1 Phase 1, a similar funding gap arose because extra
projects were added to the original T1 list and there was a similar surge in construction
costs. The T1 lead commissions both recommended that City Council proceed with the
projects and allocate the needed $5.3M to finish all projects. Ultimately, this gap was
borrowed from unallocated Phase 2 T1 Bond funds. A similar solution for the current
gap is not possible because all Measure T1 bond funding has now been fully allocated.

In the January 31, 2023 City Council meeting, Council gave direction to staff to return
with a list of all currently funded CIP projects; to evaluate these projects on whether
they were public facing, public serving, contained matching or leveraged funds and if
significant planning has occurred; to consider any other possible funding sources for
this gap. Below is a discussion of these alternatives:

Defer Existing CIP Projects with General Funding (up to $1.7M)

Attachments 3a, 3b and 3c contain all current capital projects funded with T1, GF or CIP
funds. Of these projects, staff are recommending the following four projects, totaling
$1.7M, for possible deferral:

1. $400,000 — FY24 PRW CIP Fund Allocation- This allocation is designated for
replacing Cedar Rose 2-5 and 5-12 Play Structures. The design for this work
is underway and construction funding for 1 of the 2 play structures is already
available in FY24 Parks Tax funding. Funding for the second structure could
be reallocated in FY26 PRW CIP from GF or Parks Tax.

2. $650,000 — 50% of FY23 GF Allocation for Cameras in the Public Right of
Way. This $1,293,889 project was the result of a referral by Councilmember
Taplin. Ten locations have been identified by City Council. The acquisition
and use policies will be up for City Council adoption in May. Should those
policies be approved, this remaining budget will ensure staff can implement
cameras at least half of these intersections and potentially more. Should
further budget be required, staff would return to City Council to make that
request.

3. $300,000 - FY23 CIP Fund Allocation for 62" Street Conversion to Cul De
Sac. This project was the result of a referral by Councilmember Bartlett. Work
on this project has not been started.

4. $350,000 — FY23 CIP Fund Allocation for Dredging of South Sailing Basin.
This funding was the result of a referral by Councilmember Robinson. Work
on this project has not been started.

Page 25


https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/T1%20Phase%202%20project%20list.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/T1V2%20Manual%20Final%20V04.pdf

Page 8 of 46

None of these General Funded projects have reached the threshold of “significant
planning occurred” and 3 out of 4 of these projects do not have other funding sources.

Defer, Reduce or Eliminate Existing CIP Projects with T1 Funding (up to $11.175M)
Attachment 4 contains a list of all current T1 projects and notes and information about
each project’s status. City staff is recommending the following 6 projects for possible
deferral, reduction or elimination.

1. $6.75M Street Paving Improvements - This T1 funding has been assigned to the
Hopkins Street project and while significant planning and public process has
occurred, this project has been delayed indefinitely. These funds could be used
to help close the T1 funding gap. All of the allocation is unspent.

2. $2.8M Tom Bates Community Space and Restroom - While the $390,000 of
T1P1 funding has been invested in establishing a sewer line in front of the Tom
Bates Sports Complex and costs for conceptual design, the project has not
reached the “significant planning threshold.” PRW staff has been working on and
will submit a $3M grant to augment additional work on site that uses this $2.8M
as a match.

3. $1.5M 1947 Center Street Improvements - This project would improve the HVAC
system throughout the 1947 Center Street building. $300,000 of the original
$1.8M has already been allocated for design.

4. $680,000 Ohlone Lighting Project — This project is still in the planning phase and
has $680k remaining of the $700k budgeted.

5. $445,000 Cesar Chavez Park Restroom — This project has just started
preliminary design, and significant planning has not yet occurred. If reduced, a
portable toilet will remain in the same location until future funding is located.

6. $500,000 North Berkeley Senior Center: Emergency Power Supply Solar
Batteries — This project has not yet started.

Use of FY24 Streets Funding

The FY23 & 24 Biennial Budget includes $7M for streets in FY23 (not including an
additional $1M for the Southside Streets project) and $11M for streets in FY24. Should
City Council reduce FY24 General Funds for street maintenance, Public Works would
begin deleting street segments proposed to be paved in summer 2024. A reduction in
streets funding may contradict the City Council’s July 26, 2022 policy, Adequate
General Fund Contribution for Street Maintenance to Prevent Deterioration of Pavement
Condition.

Use of General Fund FY22 Excess Equity

The FY22 Excess Equity calculation resulted in a balance of $4M, of which $1.5 million
was allocated to reserves consistent with City policy. Of the remaining balance of
$2.5M, approximately $1.5M was allocated as part of the AAO#1 for various projects
and programs, including $1M to the Southside Complete Streets. The current FY22
Excess Equity balance is $986,000; however, approximately $746,000 of the balance is
recommended to be allocated toward FY23 expenses as part of the forthcoming
AAO#2, resulting in a balance of $240,000.

Page 26



Page 9 of 46

Use of General Fund Reserves

On January 24, 2017, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 67,821-N.S.,
establishing the City’s Council’s Policy for the General Fund Reserves. The T1 funding
gap shortfall does not meet the criteria established within the policy to access either the
Stability Reserve or the Catastrophic Reserve.

Use of Public Liability Fund

The public liability fund is intended to cover costs related to damage, loss, or injury that
results from the routine operations of the City that is not covered by the City’s insurance
policies and programs. The budget for FY23 and 24 is $3.9M annually and funded by
an annual transfer from the General Fund. The fund is projected to end FY23 with a
shortfall of approximately $600,000.

Use of CIP Fund

The FY23 Adopted ending available cash balance is approximately $3 million. Given the
nature of capital improvement projects, funding is often appropriated in one fiscal year,
but not fully spent in that year, and more often, takes multiple years to be fully spent. If
there are no salary savings associated with the personnel that are charged to the CIP
fund and all funded projects were completed within the fiscal year, the ending available
cash balance for FY 24 is anticipated to be approximately -$700,000. Absent any
project deferments or deletions of capital projects, the CIP Fund is not a viable option
for filling the current T1 funding gap.

OPTIONS TO SOLVE T1 FUNDING GAP

Measure T1 project staff have worked hard to reduce scope or find additional funding
from existing Public Works (PW) and Parks, Recreation and Waterfront (PRW) Capital
funds in FY23 - FY25, but staff have determined that 11 projects cannot be completed
without additional funding, (see Attachment 1). The funding needed for “construction
cost only increases (8 projects)”, the NBSC and the Civic Center Park Upper Plaza
Improvements — Turtle Island Monument totals $2,211,750 and is needed in FY24. The
remaining funding for the AAHRC ($3.15M or $6.85M) is not needed until FY25.

Option 1
Identify the $2,211,750 needed for FY24 and commit to either the 4,000 or 6,000 square

foot AAHRC and allocate the needed funding ($3.15M or $6.85M) in FY25. Staff need
knowledge of the size of the AAHRC now in order to proceed with design. Changing
that commitment would lead to waste of up to $1M in design work over the next year.
Option 1 can be accomplished by doing one of the following:

a. Use funding from FY22 Excess Equity ($240K), reassign $400K of T1 street
funds, and defer the following projects (totaling $1.58M) to the FY25 budget
process:

$400K of PRW FY24 GF CIP for Cedar Rose Playgrounds
$680K of T1 for Ohlone Lighting
$500K of T1 for NBSC Solar Battery Storage

Page 27



Page 10 of 46

Or...

b. Reassign $2,211,750 of T1 Street Funds.

Option 2

Identify all $9,062,000 in funding needed for the shortfall in all 11 T1 projects, including
the 6,000 square foot AAHRC. Option 2 can be accomplished by doing the following:

a. Use funding from FY22 Excess Equity ($240K), reassign $6.75M of T1 street

funds, and defer the following projects (totaling $2.072M) to the FY25 budget
process:

$400K of PRW FY24 GF CIP for Cedar Rose Playgrounds

$522K of 40% of FY23 GF for Cameras in the Public Right of Way
$300K of FY23 CIP Funds for 62" Street Conversion to Cul De Sac
$350k of FY23 CIP Fund Allocation for Dredging of South Sailing Basin
$500K of T1 funding for NBSC Solar Battery Storage

Or...

b. Use FY22 Excess Equity ($240K), reassign $1.197M of T1 street funds and defer

Option 3

the following projects (totaling $7.625M) to the FY25 budget process:

$2.8M of T1 funding for Tom Bates Restroom and community space
$1.5M of T1 funding for 1947 Center Street HVAC Improvements
$400K of PRW FY24 GF CIP for Cedar Rose Playgrounds

$650K of 50% of FY23 GF for Cameras in the Public Right of Way
$300K of FY23 CIP Funds for 62" Street Conversion to Cul De Sac
$350K of FY23 CIP Fund Allocation for Dredging of South Sailing Basin
$500K of T1 funding for NBSC Solar Battery Storage

$680K of T1 Funding for Ohlone Lighting Project

$445K of T1 Funding for Cesar Chavez Restroom

Identify all $5,361,750 in funding needed for the shortfall in all 11 T1 projects, including
the 4,000 square foot AAHRC. Option 3 can be accomplished by doing the following:

a.

Reassign $5.361M of T1 street funds

Use FY22 Excess Equity ($240K), reallocate $321,750 of T1 Streets funds, and
defer the following projects (totaling $4.8M) to the FY25 budget process:

$2.8M of T1 funding for Tom Bates Restroom and Community Space
$1.5M of T1 funding for 1947 Center Street Improvements
$500K of T1 funding for NBSC Solar Battery Storage

10

Page 28



Page 11 of 46

Attachments:

1 —T1 Summary of Additional Needs

2 — Parks, Recreation & Waterfront Commission Communication on T1 Funding Gap
3a — Current PRW Capital Projects

3b —Current PW Capital Projects

3c — Current Other Capital Projects

4 — Current T1 Projects

11

Page 29



Page 12 of 46

Measure T1 Funding Gap
Recommendations

Budget and Finance Policy Committee
20 April 2023

Page 30



PURPOSE

* Review T1 funding gap

* Discussion of non-CIP funding sources

* Discussion of current CIP projects and funding sources

» Options for Council action

Page 31



MEASURE T1
FUNDING GAP

ed
Current Need
AAHRC $3.15M-
$6.85M

Construction Cost
Increase $982K
From
$5.362M
to

Civic Center Upper
Plaza $880K
NBSC Project
$350K

$9.062M

Rage 32



COUNCIL DIRECTION

Council Jan 31, 2023 Direction:

» Fully Fund African American Holistic Resource Center & the Upper Civic
Center Plaza Improvements - Turtle Island Monument

» Use criteria to develop funding options
Public-facing

Public-serving

Leveraging funds

Significant planning

- gufndin options - grants, excess equity, other funding sources and project
eferra

= Recommendations for AAHRC based on size

Rage 33



TIMING OF FUNDING NEED

TOTAL

$5.362M or
$9.062M

AAHRC AAHRC

4,000 sq ft 6,000 sq ft
$3.15M $6.85M

Page 34



ALTERNATIVE FUNDING SOURCES

« Use of FY 2024 Streets Funding

» Use of General Fund FY 2022 Excess Equity

* Use of General Fund Reserves

« Use of Public Liability Fund

e Use of CIP Fund

Page 35



STREETS FUNDING SOURCES

Historically, CIP Streets Funding
consisted of the following
recurring baseline fundin 9
sources and averaged $7.00
million annually.

e $1.93 million — CIP Fund
e $2.00 million - SB1

e $2.70 million — Measure BB
LS&R

« $450k — State Transportation
Tax

« $155k — Measure F

Due to Measure T1, an increase
in 1x CIP Fund allocatlon and
overall increase from the
baseline fundin sources the FY
2023 Adopted get is $18.03
million and FY 202 Adopted
Budget is $19.48 m|II|on

STREETS CAPITAL FUNDING

Historical Average FY 2023 FY 2024

12

10

»

N

N

(@)

mCIP Fund mSpecial Funds = Measure T1

Page 36



GENERAL FUND EXCESS EQUITY

Use of Excess Equity in the AAO#1 & AAO#2:

$67.8K for Employer of Choice Initiative
$230K for Labor Standards Enforcement &
$50K for Fair Work Week Ordinance Outreach
$100K for Harriet Tubman Terrace Tenant
$150K for La Pefa Cultural Center Capital
Grant; $50K for Strawberry Creek Lodge

Food Program & $6K for Berkeley Junior
Jackets Field Use

$50K for MLK and Addison Intersection
Imprvmt & $1.0 million for Southside
Complete Streets

$1.5 million for additional GF Reserves
$100K for Homeless Outreach Coordinator
$376K for November 2022 Election; $200K for
Tree work for storm damage; $70K for Police
staffing assessment & $120K for mailings and
outreach for eviction moratorium

Recommendation for Measure T1 Projects
Funding Gap = $240K

GENERAL FUND EXCESS EQUITY CALCULATION (EXCLUDES MEASURE P)

FY 2022 Beginning Balance § 19,806,333
FY 2022 Revenues § 263,936,692
FY 2022 Expenditures § (236,342,636)
Available Balance § 47,400,367
Less:

FY 2022 G. F. Encumbrances Restricted (AAQ #1) § (6,980,951)
FY 2022 GF. Carryover (AAO #1) 5 (5,936,110)
FY 2023 Other Adjustments (AAO #1) 5 (2,309412)
) (17,226,473)

Available Balance After AAO #1 Items § 30,173,914
Excess Property Transfer Tax to Balance FY 23 & 24 Operating Budget 5 (17,268,170)
Excess Property Transfer Tax to Replenish Reserves § (1,500,000)
Excess Property Transfer Tax Available for Capital § (8,569,573)
5 (27,337.743)

Available Balance After Pre-Funding of Excess Property Transfer Tax § 2,836,171
Additional Allocation to Reserves (part of AAO#2) § 1522439

Excess Equity Balance § 1313732

Less other AAO#2 Items § 845,831

Net Available Excess Equity Balance § AT

Page37
8




GENERAL FUND RESERVES

T1 funding gap does not meet
criteria based on policy.

However, Council has the
option to reduce the $4M in
pre-funding of reserves
included as part of the FY 24
Adopted Budget.

Option would delay the
repayment of the $10M
borrowed from the reserves
during the pandemic.

* On January 24, 2017, the City Council adopted

Resolution No. 67, 821-N.S., ‘establishing the City’s
Council’s Policy for the General Fund Reserves.

A Stability Reserve will be maintained to mitigate
loss of service delivery and financial risks associated
with unexpected revenue shortfalls during a single
fiscal year or during a Prolon ed recessionary
period. The purpose of the Stability Reserve is to
provide fiscal stability in response to unexpected
downturns or revenue shortfalls, and not to serve as
a funding source for new programs or projects.

A Catastrophic Reserve will be maintained for the
Purpose of sustaining General Fund operations in
he case of a public emergency such as a natural
disaster or other catastrc_)f)hlc event. The
Catastrophic Reserve will be used to respond to
extreme, onetime events, such as earthquakes
fires, floods, civil unrest, and terrorist attacks. The
Catastrophic Reserve will not be accessed to meet
operational shortfalls or to fund new programs or

projects. Rage 3

J




PUBLIC LIABILITY FUND

» Purpose to cover costs
related to damage, loss,
or injury that results from
the routine operations of
the City that is not
covered by the City’s
insurance

* Funded by General Fund

* Projected deficit in FY 23

FY 2023 | FY 2023 | FY2024 | FY2025 | FY 2026

Adopted | Revised | Adopted | Projected | Projected

Beginning Balance 696,004 | 696,004 | 133,993 | 404,188 | 384,694

Revenues 3,895,888 | 3,895,888 | 3,895,888 | 3,895,888 | 3,895,888

Program (Transfer In from GF. 491011) 3,895,888 | 3,895,888 | 3,895,888 | 3,895,886 | 3,895,868
Transfer from General Funa

Expenditures 3,797,298 | 4,458,559 | 3,811,342 | 3,880,569 | 3,951,180

Personnel 335,963 | 335,963 | 330,007 | 350,007 | 350,007

Non-Personnel 3,461,335 | 4,122,596 | 3,461,335 | 3,930,562 | 3,601,173

N\
Annual Surplus/Shortfall 08500 [ -562,671 \ 84546 | 15319 | 55,292
Ending Balance 795,254 k133,993 218,539 | 419,507 | 329,602

1Bage 39



5 Year Forecast

		5-Year Fund Forecast

		Public Liability (Fund 678)



				FY2005		FY2006		FY 2007		FY 2008		FY 2009		FY 2010		FY 2010		FY 2010		FY 2011		FY 2012		FY 2013		FY 2014		FY 2015		FY 2015		FY 2015		FY 2016		FY 2016		FY 2017		FY 2018		FY 2019		FY 2020		FY 2021		FY 2022		FY 2023		FY 2023		FY 2023		FY 2024		FY 2025		FY 2026

				Actuals		Actuals		Actuals		Actuals		Actuals		Adopted		Adjusted		Actuals		Actuals		Actuals		Actuals		Actual		Adopted		Adjusted		Actual		Adopted		Actual		Actual		Actual		Actual		Actual		Actual		Actual		Adopted		Revised		Actual		Adopted		Projected		Projected

		Beginning Balance		777,765		2,334,212

Stacey Johnson: Stacey Johnson:
Accounting Dept made Adjustment in FY2006 to adjust FY2005 balance.		869,574

Stacey Johnson: Stacey Johnson:
Accounting Dept made Adjustment in FY2007 to adjust FY2006 balance.		1,056,602		1,069,448		1,399,859		1,399,859		1,399,859		1,611,520		1,820,657		904,289		1,492,171		1,558,266		1,558,266		1,558,266		1,600,441		2,382,370		3,148,623		1,974,543		1,301,877		-24,903		532,781		353,225		696,664		696,664		696,664		133,993		404,188		384,894



		Revenues		1,580,476		1,374,139		1,226,406		1,853,476		1,853,476		1,778,476		1,778,476		1,778,476		1,703,476		1,556,325		1,752,987		1,695,888		1,695,888		1,695,888		1,695,888		1,695,888		1,695,888		0		1,711,657		1,695,888		2,895,888		3,131,417		3,895,888		3,895,888		3,895,888		2,921,916		3,895,888		3,895,888		3,895,888

		Program  (Transfer In from GF. 491011)		1,580,476		1,374,139		1,226,406		1,853,476		1,853,476		1,778,476		1,778,476		1,778,476		1,703,476		1,556,325		1,752,987		1,695,888		1,695,888		1,695,888		1,695,888		1,695,888		1,695,888		0		1,711,657		1,695,888		1,695,888		1,695,888		3,895,888		3,895,888		3,895,888		2,921,916		3,895,888		3,895,888		3,895,888

		Transfer from General Fund																																										1,200,000		1,435,529



		Expenditures		1,386,880		1,475,924		1,039,378		1,840,630		1,523,070		1,725,067		1,800,495		1,566,815		1,494,339		2,472,693		1,165,105		1,629,793		1,653,713		2,148,774		871,784		1,641,233		929,635		1,174,080		2,384,323		3,022,668		2,338,204		3,310,972		3,552,449		3,797,298		4,458,559		3,218,801		3,811,342		3,880,569		3,951,180

		Personnel		260,876		311,655		331,241		439,070		451,651		457,014		457,014		431,788		338,477		332,259		311,450		421,449		392,378		392,378		384,908		379,898		448,212		531,823		528,791		485,939		261,678		208,882		360,830		335,963		335,963		164,839		350,007		350,007		350,007

		Non-Personnel		1,126,004		1,164,269		708,137		1,401,560		1,071,419		1,268,053		1,343,481		1,135,027		1,155,862		2,140,434		853,655		1,208,344		1,261,335		1,756,396		486,876		1,261,335		481,423		642,257		1,855,532		2,536,730		2,076,526		3,102,091		3,191,618		3,461,335		4,122,596		3,053,962		3,461,335		3,530,562		3,601,173

		Current Encumbrances

		Carryover/Adjustments 



		Annual Surplus/Shortfall		193,596		-101,785		187,028		12,846		330,406		53,409		-22,019		211,661		209,137		-916,368		587,882		66,095		42,175		-452,886		824,104		54,655		766,253		-1,174,080		-672,666		-1,326,780		557,684		-179,555		343,439		98,590		-562,671		-296,885		84,546		15,319		-55,292

		Ending Balance		971,361		2,232,427		1,056,602		1,069,448		1,399,859

Stacey Johnson: Stacey Johnson:
$5 added in to correct WHAT WOULD BE A $5.00 difference in the overall ending fund balances & beginning fund balances for the out years. 		

Stacey Johnson: Stacey Johnson:
Accounting Dept made Adjustment in FY2007 to adjust FY2006 balance.						1,453,268		1,377,840		1,611,520		1,820,657		904,289		1,492,171		1,558,266		1,600,441		1,105,380		2,382,370		1,655,096		3,148,623		1,974,543		1,301,877		-24,903		532,781		353,225		696,664		795,254		133,993		399,779		218,539		419,507		329,602





		Revenue

		FY 2019 - FY 2024 GF Transfer is set at $1,695,888

		FY 2022, baseline budget increased by $2.2M for a total amount of $3,895,888

		FY 2023- FY 2026 GF Transfer is set at $3,895,888 (increase of $2.2M)



		Expenditures

		FY 2020 and FY 2021 Adopted Personnel includes approved COLA for FY 2020 and zero COLA for FY 2021 and updated benefit rates

		FY 2022 through FY 2024 Projected Personnel assumes no COLA increase for salary and a 7% increasea for FY 2021 to FY 2022, a 4% increase from FY 2022 to FY 2023, and a 4% increase from FY 2023 to FY 2024 for benefit costs.

		FY 2022 through FY 2024 Adopted NonPersonnel expenditure includes 3% increase in projection

		FY 2025 through FY 2026 Projected NonPersonnel expenditure includes 2% increase in projection



		Issues

		FY 2014 - Increase in personnel and additional cost for outside council and judgment claims result in a structural deficit for FY 2014.   

		Fund balance is gone as of end of FY 2019.

		Fund balance appears to recover in FY20, but is depleted in FY21.







&K0000FFInternal	


I:\rosete\BUDGET\DEPARTMENTS\City Attorney\PLF Fund Balance		





Page 22 of 46

PRELIMINARY CIP FUND

FIVE-YEAR PROJECTION

FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027

Adopted Adopted Projected* Projected* Projected*
BEGINNING AVAILABLE CASH BALANCE | $8,165,917  $3,154,520 ($739,349) ($3,069,806) ($5,398,143)
TRANSFER FROM FUND 011
(ANNUAL BASELINE TRANSFER) $4,950,905 $4,950,905 S$4,950,905 $4,950,905 $4,950,905
TRANSFER FROM FUND 011
(EXCESS PROPERTY TRANSFER TAX) $14,050,000 $13,420,000 SO SO SO
TOTAL REVENUES $19,000,905 S18,370,905/ $4,950,905 $4,950,905 $4,950,905
PERSONNEL - ZERO COLA $2,269,652 $2,317,067] S2,317,067 $2,317,067 S2,317,067
NON-PERSONNEL §21,742,650 S19,947,707| $4,964,295 S$4,962,175 $4,962,175
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $24,012,302 S22,264,774| S$7,281,362 $7,279,242 57,279,242
ANNUAL SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) ($5,011,397) ($3,893,869) ($2,330,457) ($2,328,337) ($2,328,337)
ENDING AVAILABLE CASH BALANCE $3,154,520 ($739,349) ($3,069,806) ($5,398,143) ($7,726,480)

*FY 2025 and outward years projections shows a return to baseline revenue and baseline
expenditures.

{Rage 40



REVIEW OF FUNDED
CAPITAL PROJECTS

Review of all Capital Projects in Attachments 3a, 3b and 3c:

1. Council Criteria from 1/31 Meeting
« Public-Facing
* Public-Serving
* Leveraging Funds
« Significant Planning

2. Project Progress
3. ldentified Funding Spent to Date
4. Funding Source

1Page 41



POSSIBLE PROJECTS TO DEFER TO

FY25 OR BEYOND

General or CIP Funded Projects
representing up to $1.7M

« $400,000 — FY24 PRW CIP Fund Allocation

This allocation is designated for replacing Cedar Rose 2-5 and 5-12 Play Structures. The
design for this work is underway and construction funding for 1 of the 2 play structures
is already available in FY24 Parks Tax funding.

. 3%5\’(\)[,000 - 50% of FY23 GF Allocation for Cameras in the Public

This $1,293,889 project was the result of a referral by Councilmember Taplin. Ten
locations have been identified by City Council. The acquisition and use policies will be
up for City Council adoption in May. The remaining budget will ensure staff can
implement cameras at least half of these intersections and potentially more. Should
further budget be required, staff would return to City Council to make that request.

. 2300,000 — FY23 CIP Fund for 62" Street Conversion to Cul De
ac.

This project was the result of a referral by Councilmember Bartlett. Work on this project
has not been started.

* $350,000 — FY23 CIP Fund for Dredging of South Sailing Basin.

This funding was the result of a referral by Councilmember Robinson. Work on this
project has not been started.

T1 Funded Projects
representing up to $12.675M

* $6.75M- Street Paving Improvements

This T1 funding has been assigned to the Hopkins Street project and while significant planning
and public process has occurred, this project has been delayed indefinitely..

* $2.8M- Tom Bates Community Space and Restroom

While the $390,000 of T1P1 funding has been invested in establishing a sewer line in front of
the Tom Bates Sports Complex and doing conceptual design, the project has not reached the
“significant planning threshold.” PRW staff will submit a $3M grant to augment additional
work on site that uses this $2.8M as a match.

* $1.5M- 1947 Center Street Improvements

This project would improve the HVAC system throughout the 1947 Center Street building.
$300,000 of the original $1.8M has already been allocated for design.

* $680,000- Ohlone Lighting Project
This project is still in the planning phase and has $680k remaining of the $700k budgeted.
* $445,000- Cesar Chavez Park Restroom

This project has just started preliminary design, and significant planning has not yet occurred.
If reduced, a portable toilet will remain in the same location until future funding is located.

« $500,000- North Berkeley Senior Center: Emergency Power Supply
Solar Batteries

This project has not yet started.

1Rage 42



OPTION 1

Option 1 — Identify the $2,211,750 needed for FY24 and commit to either the 4,000
or 6,000 square foot AAHRC and allocate the needed funding (53.15M or $6.85M) in
FY25.

Option 1a Option 1b

* Use funding from FY22 Excess Equity ($240K) » Reassign $2,211,750 of T1 street funds.
» Reassign S400K of T1 street funds

» Defer the following projects (totaling $1.58M) to

the FY25 budget process:

* S400K of PRW FY24 GF CIP for Cedar Rose
Playgrounds

* S680K of T1 for Ohlone Lighting
* S500K of T1 for NBSC Solar Battery Storage

1Rage 43



OPTION 2

Option 2 — Identify all $9,062,000 in funding needed for the shortfall in all 11 T1

projects, including the 6,000 square foot AAHRC.

Option 2a
* Use funding from FY22 Excess Equity ($240K)
* Reassign $6.75M of T1 street funds

» Defer the following projects (totaling $2.072M) to
the FY25 budget process:

S400K of PRW FY24 GF CIP for Cedar Rose Playgrounds

S522K of 40% of FY23 GF for Cameras in the Public
Right of Way

S300K of FY23 CIP Funds for 62" Street Conversion to
Cul De Sac

$350k of FY23 CIP Fund Allocation for Dredging of
South Sailing Basin

S500K of T1 funding for NBSC Solar Battery Storage

Option 2b
* Use funding from FY22 Excess Equity ($240K)
* Reassign $1.197M of T1 street funds

» Defer the following projects (totaling $7.625M) to
the FY25 budget process:

$2.8M of T1 funding for Tom Bates Restroom and
community space

$1.5M of T1 funding for 1947 Center Street HVAC
Improvements

S400K of PRW FY24 GF CIP for Cedar Rose Playgrounds

S650K of 50% of FY23 GF for Cameras in the Public
Right of Way

S300K of FY23 CIP Funds for 62" Street Conversion to
Cul De Sac

$350K of FY23 CIP Fund Allocation for Dredging of
South Sailing Basin

S500K of T1 funding for NBSC Solar Battery Storage
$680K of T1 Funding for Ohlone Lighting Project
$445K of T1 Funding for Cesar Chavez Restroom

1Page 44




OPTION 3

Option 3 — Identify all 55,361,750 in funding needed for the shortfall in all 11 T1
projects, including the 4,000 square foot AAHRC.

Option 3a
* Reassign $5.361M of T1 street funds

Option 3b
* Use FY22 Excess Equity ($240K)
e Reallocate $321,750 of T1 streets funds

* Defer the following projects (totaling $4.8M) to
the FY25 budget process:
* $2.8M of T1 funding for Tom Bates Restroom and
Community Space

* S$1.5M of T1 funding for 1947 Center Street
Improvements

* S500K of T1 funding for NBSC Solar Battery Storage

1Page 45



NEXT STEPS

» Budget and Finance Policy Committee to discuss staff presentation and
options during the April 20, 2023 meeting

* Budget and Finance Policy Committee to provide direction on closing
the fund gap to complete Measure T1 Projects during the April 20, 2023
meeting

 City Manager to return to the full City Council at one of the May 2023
meetings with recommendations for how to close the project funding
gap (after direction from the Budget and Finance Policy Committee)

1Page 46



Page 29 of 46

Office of the City Manager

To: City Council Budget and Finance Policy Committee
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager
Date: April 20, 2023

Submitted by: Sharon Friedrichsen, Budget Manager
Scott Ferris, Director, Parks Recreation & Waterfront
Liam Garland, Director, Public Works

Subject: Measure T1 Funding Gap

INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this memo is to help City Council identify funding for the $5.362M or
$9.062M gap for Measure T1 projects. Included in this document are discussions of
existing capital projects funded by General Fund (GF) and T1, borrowing options, GF
excess equity, public liability fund and the Capital Improvement Project (CIP) fund. Staff
made City Council aware of this gap on January 31, 2023 and City Council referred it to
the Budget and Finance Commission.

T1 FUNDING GAP

This T1 funding gap exists because of significant construction cost increases over the
last two years and unanticipated costs to the African American Holistic Resource Center
(AAHRC), Civic Center Upper Plaza Improvements — Turtle Island Monument (TIM) and
the North Berkeley Senior Center (NBSC) projects (see Attachment 1). These increases
and unanticipated costs are discussed below.

Construction Cost Increases ($981,750)

Construction costs have increased 26% over the last two years (2020 — 2022). These
increases have required staff to reduce design and construction scopes and identify
other funding sources where possible in order to complete many T1 phase 2 (T1P2)
projects. Examples of these issues can be seen in the Willard Clubhouse replacement
project and the new Ohlone ages 2-5 and 5-12 Playgrounds and Mural Garden project.
Less than 16 months ago, the Willard Clubhouse preferred conceptual design was
reduced by more than 30% in order to complete the total project with the original T1
budget allocation of $7M. The construction contract at Ohlone Park, which was recently
awarded at City Council in December of 2022, needed an additional $200,000 (or 10%
additional project funding) of PRW CIP funds in order to proceed.

Page 47



Page 30 of 46

Unfortunately, eight T1P2 projects cannot be reduced in scope, and in fact, need an
additional 15% in funding in order to produce a baseline project. This list includes four
public restrooms, Marina Docks D&E replacement, the 1947 Center St. building
improvements, and two projects at the Corporation Yard. In total, an additional
$981,750 is needed to complete these projects.

North Berkeley Senior Center (NBSC): $350K

This $11.086M project is currently in the close-out phase and has approximately
$350,000 of existing costs that are over and above the existing project budget (T1,
FEMA grant and CIP funds). These costs include construction and legal fees incurred
to-date.

Civic Center Park Upper Plaza Improvements - Turtle Island Monument: $880K

In March of 2023, this project received approval from the Landmarks Preservation
Commission. This approval will result in the issuance of a Structural Alteration Permit
and construction in FY24. With construction cost increases and the recent scope
changes that include additional indigenous art, water and lighting elements, the cost of
the overall project has increased to $2.5M, without the artwork. It is anticipated that the
artwork, which is estimated to be in the $500,000 range, will be funded by the Civic Arts
Commission budget. This project is funded by T1, a Clean California grant, Civic Arts
and Parks Tax. This project could be reduced by $300,000 if the stonework in the upper
plaza were only partially replaced.

African American Holistic Service Center (AAHRC: $3.15M- $6.85M)

The AAHRC currently has $8.25M in total project funding (comprised of $7M T1, $225K
GF and $1M in a federal earmark). Until last year, this funding would have been enough
to complete the renovation of the 4,000 square foot city-owned building at 1890 Alcatraz
Street. With increasing construction costs and the completion of a recent engineering
assessment of the building and site (structural and geotechnical) which found significant
structural problems’, City staff recommended that this building be replaced. At the
January 31, 2023 meeting, City Council acted to eliminate the option of renovating the
existing structure at 1890 Adeline, leaving only the size of building to be determined. A
4,000 square foot building will cost an additional $3.15M and a 6,000 square foot
building will cost an additional $6.85M.

The 6,000 square foot building will allow for a community room and additional therapy
rooms and a youth space that will be used to help reduce the effects of racism.

The project architect cannot proceed with the design phase until direction on this issue
can be provided.

CITY COUNCIL'S JANUARY 31 DIRECTION

The City Manager was directed to:

"Problems identified include inadequate shear capacity, diaphragm discontinuities, insufficient
anchorage and cross ties, and expansive and unknown subsurface soils.

Page 48



Page 31 of 46

-_—

Fully fund the replacement of the African American Holistic Resource Center.

2. Fully fund the Civic Center Upper Plaza Improvements - Turtle Island Monument
project.

3. Use the following criteria and return to the City Council with options for how to
close the project funding gap: a. Prioritize projects that are public facing and
public serving; b. Prioritize projects that have matching funds; and c. Prioritize
projects that are in significant progress in the planning stage.

4. Look at all funding options including grants, General Fund excess equity, and
any additional funding sources to close the funding gap, including potentially
deferring projects that do not meet the outlined criteria.

5. Present the funding recommendations, and provide an update on the City’s
capital improvement projects, to the Budget & Finance Committee for
consideration prior to returning to the full City Council.

6. Provide recommendations for the replacement of the African American Holistic

Resource Center that reflect a 4,000 square foot project and a 6,000 square foot

project.

POSSIBLE SOLUTIONS TO T1 FUNDING GAP

The solutions to the Measure T1 Phase Two (T1P2) overage could involve finding new
funding, or reducing phase of a project (e.g., design but not construction), or deleting
certain projects from the T1P2 list. Per the T1 Operations Manual (Section 4.5), such
changes require consultation with the two Measure T1 lead commissions and action by
City Council. After discussing this gap in their March meeting, the Parks, Recreation
and Waterfront Commission took action during the April 12, 2023 meeting to suggest
options for alternative funding (see Attachment 2). The Transportation and
Infrastructure Commission discussed this item at their January and February 2023
meetings and did not take any action.

Halfway through Measure T1 Phase 1, a similar funding gap arose because extra
projects were added to the original T1 list and there was a similar surge in construction
costs. The T1 lead commissions both recommended that City Council proceed with the
projects and allocate the needed $5.3M to finish all projects. Ultimately, this gap was
borrowed from unallocated Phase 2 T1 Bond funds. A similar solution for the current
gap is not possible because all Measure T1 bond funding has now been fully allocated.

In the January 31, 2023 City Council meeting, Council gave direction to staff to return
with a list of all currently funded CIP projects; to evaluate these projects on whether
they were public facing, public serving, contained matching or leveraged funds and if
significant planning has occurred; to consider any other possible funding sources for
this gap. Below is a discussion of these alternatives:

Page 49



Page 32 of 46

Defer Existing CIP Projects with General Funding (up to $1.7M)

Attachments 3a, 3b and 3c contain all current capital projects funded with T1, GF or CIP
funds. Of these projects, staff are recommending the following four projects, totaling
$1.7M, for possible deferral:

1. $400,000 — FY24 PRW CIP Fund Allocation- This allocation is designated for
replacing Cedar Rose 2-5 and 5-12 Play Structures. The design for this work
is underway and construction funding for 1 of the 2 play structures is already
available in FY24 Parks Tax funding. Funding for the second structure could
be reallocated in FY26 PRW CIP from GF or Parks Tax.

2. $650,000 — 50% of FY23 GF Allocation for Cameras in the Public Right of
Way. This $1,293,889 project was the result of a referral by Councilmember
Taplin. Ten locations have been identified by City Council. The acquisition
and use policies will be up for City Council adoption in May. Should those
policies be approved, this remaining budget will ensure staff can implement
cameras at least half of these intersections and potentially more. Should
further budget be required, staff would return to City Council to make that
request.

3. $300,000 — FY23 CIP Fund Allocation for 62" Street Conversion to Cul De
Sac. This project was the result of a referral by Councilmember Bartlett. Work
on this project has not been started.

4. $350,000 — FY23 CIP Fund Allocation for Dredging of South Sailing Basin.
This funding was the result of a referral by Councilmember Robinson. Work
on this project has not been started.

None of these General Funded projects have reached the threshold of “significant
planning occurred” and 3 out of 4 of these projects do not have other funding sources.

Defer, Reduce or Eliminate Existing CIP Projects with T1 Funding (up to $11.175M)
Attachment 4 contains a list of all current T1 projects and notes and information about
each project’s status. City staff is recommending the following 6 projects for possible
deferral, reduction or elimination.

1. $6.75M Street Paving Improvements - This T1 funding has been assigned to the
Hopkins Street project and while significant planning and public process has
occurred, this project has been delayed indefinitely. These funds could be used
to help close the T1 funding gap. All of the allocation is unspent.

2. $2.8M Tom Bates Community Space and Restroom - While the $390,000 of
T1P1 funding has been invested in establishing a sewer line in front of the Tom
Bates Sports Complex and costs for conceptual design, the project has not
reached the “significant planning threshold.” PRW staff has been working on and
will submit a $3M grant to augment additional work on site that uses this $2.8M
as a match.

3. $1.5M 1947 Center Street Improvements - This project would improve the HVAC
system throughout the 1947 Center Street building. $300,000 of the original
$1.8M has already been allocated for design.

4. $680,000 Ohlone Lighting Project — This project is still in the planning phase and
has $680k remaining of the $700k budgeted.

Page 50



Page 33 of 46

5. $445,000 Cesar Chavez Park Restroom — This project has just started
preliminary design, and significant planning has not yet occurred. If reduced, a
portable toilet will remain in the same location until future funding is located.

6. $500,000 North Berkeley Senior Center: Emergency Power Supply Solar
Batteries — This project has not yet started.

Use of FY24 Streets Funding

The FY23 & 24 Biennial Budget includes $7M for streets in FY23 (not including an
additional $1M for the Southside Streets project) and $11M for streets in FY24. Should
City Council reduce FY24 General Funds for street maintenance, Public Works would
begin deleting street segments proposed to be paved in summer 2024. A reduction in
streets funding may contradict the City Council’s July 26, 2022 policy, Adequate
General Fund Contribution for Street Maintenance to Prevent Deterioration of Pavement
Condition.

Use of General Fund FY22 Excess Equity

The FY22 Excess Equity calculation resulted in a balance of $4M, of which $1.5 million
was allocated to reserves consistent with City policy. Of the remaining balance of
$2.5M, approximately $1.5M was allocated as part of the AAO#1 for various projects
and programs, including $1M to the Southside Complete Streets. The current FY22
Excess Equity balance is $986,000; however, approximately $746,000 of the balance is
recommended to be allocated toward FY23 expenses as part of the forthcoming
AAO#2, resulting in a balance of $240,000.

Use of General Fund Reserves

On January 24, 2017, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 67,821-N.S.,
establishing the City’s Council’s Policy for the General Fund Reserves. The T1 funding
gap shortfall does not meet the criteria established within the policy to access either the
Stability Reserve or the Catastrophic Reserve.

Use of Public Liability Fund

The public liability fund is intended to cover costs related to damage, loss, or injury that
results from the routine operations of the City that is not covered by the City’s insurance
policies and programs. The budget for FY23 and 24 is $3.9M annually and funded by
an annual transfer from the General Fund. The fund is projected to end FY23 with a
shortfall of approximately $600,000.

Use of CIP Fund

The FY23 Adopted ending available cash balance is approximately $3 million. Given the
nature of capital improvement projects, funding is often appropriated in one fiscal year,
but not fully spent in that year, and more often, takes multiple years to be fully spent. If
there are no salary savings associated with the personnel that are charged to the CIP
fund and all funded projects were completed within the fiscal year, the ending available
cash balance for FY 24 is anticipated to be approximately -$700,000. Absent any
project deferments or deletions of capital projects, the CIP Fund is not a viable option
for filling the current T1 funding gap.

Page 51



Page 34 of 46

OPTIONS TO SOLVE T1 FUNDING GAP

Measure T1 project staff have worked hard to reduce scope or find additional funding
from existing Public Works (PW) and Parks, Recreation and Waterfront (PRW) Capital
funds in FY23 - FY25, but staff have determined that 11 projects cannot be completed
without additional funding, (see Attachment 1). The funding needed for “construction
cost only increases (8 projects)”, the NBSC and the Civic Center Park Upper Plaza
Improvements — Turtle Island Monument totals $2,211,750 and is needed in FY24. The
remaining funding for the AAHRC ($3.15M or $6.85M) is not needed until FY25.

Option 1
|dentify the $2,211,750 needed for FY24 and commit to either the 4,000 or 6,000 square

foot AAHRC and allocate the needed funding ($3.15M or $6.85M) in FY25. Staff need
knowledge of the size of the AAHRC now in order to proceed with design. Changing
that commitment would lead to waste of up to $1M in design work over the next year.
Option 1 can be accomplished by doing one of the following:

a. Use funding from FY22 Excess Equity ($240K), reassign $400K of T1 street
funds, and defer the following projects (totaling $1.58M) to the FY25 budget
process:

$400K of PRW FY24 GF CIP for Cedar Rose Playgrounds
$680K of T1 for Ohlone Lighting
$500K of T1 for NBSC Solar Battery Storage

Or...

b. Reassign $2,211,750 of T1 Street Funds.

Option 2
Identify all $9,062,000 in funding needed for the shortfall in all 11 T1 projects, including

the 6,000 square foot AAHRC. Option 2 can be accomplished by doing the following:

a. Use funding from FY22 Excess Equity ($240K), reassign $6.75M of T1 street
funds, and defer the following projects (totaling $2.072M) to the FY25 budget
process:

$400K of PRW FY24 GF CIP for Cedar Rose Playgrounds

$522K of 40% of FY23 GF for Cameras in the Public Right of Way
$300K of FY23 CIP Funds for 62" Street Conversion to Cul De Sac
$350k of FY23 CIP Fund Allocation for Dredging of South Sailing Basin
$500K of T1 funding for NBSC Solar Battery Storage

Or...
b. Use FY22 Excess Equity ($240K), reassign $1.197M of T1 street funds and defer
the following projects (totaling $7.625M) to the FY25 budget process:

$2.8M of T1 funding for Tom Bates Restroom and community space
$1.5M of T1 funding for 1947 Center Street HVAC Improvements

Page 52



Page 35 of 46

$400K of PRW FY24 GF CIP for Cedar Rose Playgrounds

$650K of 50% of FY23 GF for Cameras in the Public Right of Way
$300K of FY23 CIP Funds for 62" Street Conversion to Cul De Sac
$350K of FY23 CIP Fund Allocation for Dredging of South Sailing Basin
$500K of T1 funding for NBSC Solar Battery Storage

$680K of T1 Funding for Ohlone Lighting Project

$445K of T1 Funding for Cesar Chavez Restroom

Option 3
Identify all $5,361,750 in funding needed for the shortfall in all 11 T1 projects, including
the 4,000 square foot AAHRC. Option 3 can be accomplished by doing the following:

a. Reassign $5.361M of T1 street funds
Or...

b. Use FY22 Excess Equity ($240K), reallocate $321,750 of T1 Streets funds, and
defer the following projects (totaling $4.8M) to the FY25 budget process:
$2.8M of T1 funding for Tom Bates Restroom and Community Space
$1.5M of T1 funding for 1947 Center Street Improvements
$500K of T1 funding for NBSC Solar Battery Storage

Attachments:

1 —T1 Summary of Additional Needs

2 — Parks, Recreation & Waterfront Commission Communication on T1 Funding Gap
3a — Current PRW Capital Projects

3b —Current PW Capital Projects

3c — Current Other Capital Projects

4 — Current T1 Projects

Page 53



Measure T1 Funding Gap

April 2023

Projects Requiring Additional Escalation

Page 36 of 46

ATTACHMENT 1

Category Project Name/Description Budgeted Leverages other funds Completed / In Design Apply Addl 15% Possible to | Additional Funding | Public-Facing Matching Significant Notes
Bidding / Escalation? Escalation Reduce Required Funds Planning has
Encumbered Scope? Occurred
Care and Shelter and |Restrooms in the ROW San Pablo/University 450,000 X Yes 67,500 No 67,500 X X At 50% design, location
Non- Departmental being identified.
Citywide Facilities |Restrooms in the ROW Alcatraz/Adeline 450,000 X Yes 67,500 No 67,500 X X At 50% design, location
being identified.
Buildings in Parks |Harrison Park - Restroom Renovation 450,000 X Yes 67,500 No 67,500 X X In conceptual design
Ohlone Park - New Restroom 500,000 X Yes 75,000 No 75,000 X X At 35% design, location
and model determined.
Waterfront Marina D and E Dock Replacement 595,000 ($5.5M DBAW loan X Yes 89,250 No 89,250 X X At 60% design.
(MF); $1.5M State
earmark
Facilities 1947 Center Street Improvements 1,800,000 X Yes 270,000 No 270,000 X X HVAC component is at
35% design; seismic
assessment to start by
June 2023.
Corporation Yard - Green Room Lockers, Bathroom, Training 1,700,000 X X Yes 255,000 No 255,000 X Design completed,
Room, Floor, Cabinets - Building B project bidding.
Corporation Yard - Storage Room - Roof Repair Bldg H 600,000 X Yes 90,000 No 90,000 X At 50% design.
Totals $ 6,545,000 $ 981,750 |Escalation Min Need
Projects Requiring Additional Escalation and Unanticipated Costs
Category Project Name/Description Budgeted Leverages other funds Completed / In Design Possible to | Additional Funding] Public-Facing] Matching Funds Significant Notes
Bidding / Reduce Required Planning has
Encumbered Scope? Occurred
Care and Shelter and [ North Berkeley Senior Center 8,848,332 $363k PW CIP Fund X N/A 350,000 X X X This $350K is needed over
Non- Departmental FY23; $1.875M FEMA and above allocated
Citywide Facilities grant funding
African American Holistic Resource Center (4,000 sq ft)** 7,000,000 | $1M federal earmark; X No 3,150,000 X X 4K sq ft building require
$250k GF additional $3.15M to
African American Holistic Resource Center (6,000 sq ft)*** 7,000,000 | $1M federal earmark; X No 6,850,000 X X 6K sq ft building require
$250k GF additional $6.85M to
Parks Civic Center Park Upper Plaza Improvements - Turtle Island 300,000 | $596k Clean CA grant; X No 880,000 X X X Landmark Commission
Monument $750K Parks Tax; Art approval received in March
Funding from Civic Arts 2023
Fund
4,380,000 **Additional Funding Needed (AAHRC-4,000 sq ft)

[§ 8,080,000

***Additional Funding Needed (AAHRC-6,000 sq ft)

Total Funding Required

5,361,750
9,061,750

R

Total Funding Needed (AAHRC-4,000 sq ft)
Total Funding Needed (AAHRC-6,000 sq ft)

Page 54



Page 37 of 46
ATTACHMENT 2

MEMORANDUM

Date: April 12,2023

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the Berkeley City Council, and
the Budget & Finance Committee

From: Parks, Recreation and Waterfront Commission

Subject: Measure T1 Phase 2 Shortfall Solution

Dear Mayor and Council Members,

The Parks, Recreation and Waterfront Commission (PRW) is committed to ensuring the success of the T1
Bond effort. We write now to share our recommendations on the current funding gap in Phase 2 T1
projects. These recommendations were an action item at the regular meeting of the PRW on April 12,
2023 and approved unanimously.

BACKGROUND

Working with the Public Works Commission we successfully advocated for the passage of the T1 Bond in
2016 and now want to ensure the best use of those funds, to address critical infrastructure needs,
promote transparency, support the community, address inequities, and, of critical importance, build
long-lasting trust with Berkeley residents. For example, to ensure the optimal allocation of T1 funds our
commissions developed criteria on which to base selections for T1 projects. The original list of 7 criteria
was defined in 2017 and used to prioritize Phase 1 projects. In 2020 those criteria were updated to
include:

- Greatest Benefit
Equity
Health, Safety and Resilience
Environmental Sustainability/Durability

Very importantly, we wanted to provide our residents with additional improvements in the areas of the
city that have fewer parks, and in areas that have received less funding over the past decades.
Addressing racial equity played a major part in formulating our final recommendations and we request
that our focus on equity and our original project list remain a priority.

Those decisions were made before Covid-19, long before we witnessed the increased importance of our
parks, open space, and a functioning infrastructure for the health and safety of our community.
Providing our residents access to clean, accessible, and available facilities and open space is one of the
most important duties we have before us.

CURRENT SITUATION

Staff have now identified a funding gap of $4.5 to $8.2M for the Phase 2 T1 projects. The City has faced
T1 budgetary deficits in the past and found elegant solutions.

Page 55



Page 38 of 46

In 2019, the City faced a $6.8 million funding gap between the cost of the approved T1 Phase 1 Projects
and the available Phase 1 bond funds. This gap was caused by “an increase in energy upgrades included
in the facility projects, and soaring escalation in construction costs.”

Because delay would increase the project costs and the importance of leveraging the voter approved T1
funds, the Council approved

* $1.5 million in interest income and
* the transfer of $5.3 million from the General Fund (GF) to the T1 fund to close the funding gap.

With this additional funding, all of the Phase 1 projects were fully funded.

In 2023, the City again faces a large gap of $4 — S8M between the estimated cost of the approved Phase
2 Projects and the available bond funding. While some of the shortfall is caused by large increases in
construction costs, requiring the T1 fund to pay back the $5.3M GF transfer significantly decreased the
bond funding available for Phase 2 T1 projects.

The Parks, Recreation and Waterfront Commission believes that all the approved T1 Phase 2 projects
should be completed as they were recommended by both the Parks and Waterfront Commission and
the Public Works Commission and approved by the City Council on Dec. 15, 2020. As discussed above,
the projects in Phase 2 attempted to provide a more equitable distribution of facilities in the City,
whereas Phase 1 projects were selected from existing shovel ready projects to meet the three-year
bond spending requirement.

To solve the FY2023 funding cap, we ask the Council to come up with creative solutions that allow all
approved projects to be complete. To facilitate finding a creative solution, we list several options for
Council consideration.

Option 1. Over the next five years, allocate the increase in General Fund interest income over the 2022
baseline to the T1 Fund. The recent FY 2023 Mid-Year Budget Update presented to the Council reported
that the increase in interest income over the 2022 baseline was $0.9M for the first six months. Due to
the significantly higher interest rates in 2023, the annual increase in interest income for the full year is
likely to be ~S2M/yr. Since interest rates are projected to remain high for some time, the excess interest
income over 5 years would fund all of the T1 Phase 2 projects, including the preferred 6,000 ft> AAHRC.

Option 2. Forgive the 2019 General Fund loan and transfer $5.3 million back to the T1 account. As of
June 30, 2022, the “unassigned” portion of the GF balance in the City’s Investment Portfolio was $75
million. Transfer of 7% of the “unassigned” funds to the T1 fund would allow the completion of all of the
Phase 2 projects and the construction of new 4,000 ft? African American Holistic Research Center
(AAHRC).

Option 3. To get us to the preferred 6,000 ft2 AAHRC, in addition to Option 2, borrow an additional
$3.7M from the Workers Compensation Fund (WC), a la the Premier Cru building purchase of $6.6M,
and pay back the loan from the ten annual contributions from the GF capital equipment funds. This
would allow all Phase 2 Projects to be completed and the construction of a 6,000 ft>? AAHRC. In FY 22,
the WC fund revenues exceeded expenses by $3M, increasing its “cash and cash equivalents, as of June
30, 2022, to over S49M.

Page 56



Page 39 of 46

Option 4. Assign the cost of connecting the proposed three public restrooms in the ROW at (a)
Telegraph/Channing, (b) San Pablo/University, and (c) Alcatraz/Adeline to the City’s Sanitary Sewer
Fund. These three projects are estimated to cost $1.35M of which 50% is due to connecting the public
toilets to the City’s sewer lines. In 2022 the City’s Sanitary Sewer Fund had revenues of $25.5M and
expenses of $16.7M, generating a surplus of $8.8M, which increased its fund balance to $35M. Since
these public toilets will address a great scarcity of public toilets in Berkeley and the Sewer funds has
ample monies, they should pay the $0.7M cost of connecting the three new public restrooms to the
sanitary sewer system. Implementing this policy of sharing the costs will facilitate the creation of more
public restrooms.*

Option 4a. If the Sewer Fund is legally restricted from contributing to the cost of making a public
restroom operational, then the City should consider using some of the interest revenue from the Sewer
Fund’s large balance to fund these costs.

Option 5. Consider assigning the Hopkins Corridor Project T1 funds to help close the T1 Phase 2 funding
gap, if these funds cannot be spent within the three-year window specified by the bond covenants.
Since the Hopkins Corridor Project has been indefinitely postponed, it may not be possible to reserve
assigned T1 funds, since such funds have to be spent within 3 years of the bond tranche issue date. If
the Hopkins project is delayed sufficiently, such that T1 funds cannot be used, the surplus funds could
be used to close the T1 Phase 2 funding gap.

Authors: Gordon Wozniak, Erin Diehm and Claudia Kawczynska

Noted:

*We reached our conclusions after listening carefully to the public and other Commission commentary, that
identified restrooms and play equipment as high priorities. As part of Phase 1 funding the City conducted a Citywide
Restroom Study that helped to direct our selection of eight restrooms, three of which are located in the ROW
requiring an additional expensive of sewer line hookups. Public restrooms are a vital community resource and a
basic necessity.

Citywide Restroom Study: Berkeley Wash Assessment, Hyphae Design Laboratory (2020)
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/Citywide%20Restroom%20Study%20and%20Executive%20Sum
mary%20-%202020-10-06%20-%20Final.pdf

Public Restrooms a vital resource: "Why Are Public Restrooms Still So Rare", NY Times (March 22, 2023)
https://www.nytimes.com/2023/03/22/business/public-restrooms-bathrooms-us-city.html

Page 57



PRW Capital Projects Not in Construction in Spring / Summer 2023 Page 40 Of 46 ATrAC H M E NT 3A

Project Status Capital Projects Budget* Construction

Grove Park 2-5 and 5-12 Playgrounds and Sport Field T1- $1.125M, Grant- $503K, CIP- $603K Now
King Pool Tile, Electrical and Plaster T1- $350K, CIP- $190K Now
Projects in Construction or have been awarded  |Ohlone 2-5, 5-12 Playgrounds, Mural Garden T1- $500K, CIP- $391K Now
Waterfront: Marina Finger Docks- Phase 4 MF- $550K Now
Waterfront: Marina O and K Electrical Replacement CIP- $870K, MF- $883K Now
Waterfront: Key Fob System MF- $100K Now
Agquatic Park Dock Access/Parking Lot PT- $640K Spring 2023
Aquatic Park — West Side Irrigation and Tree Planting Grant- $100K, Bayer- $260K Summer 2023
. - . . Aquatic Park — Street and Landscaping renovation: Addison- Dreamland PT- $357K CIP- $55k Spring 2023
Projects Bidding /Construction in Spring-Summer
) o o s pring Echo Lake Camp ADA- Phase 1 CIP- $200K, Camps Fund- $705K Summer 2023
Solano- Peralta Play Equipment/ Furniture GF- $50K, CIP- $80K Summer 2023
Tuolumne Camp EV Charging Stations Cat Res- $350K Spring 2023
Waterfront: Marina Pilling Replacements T1- $1.2M, CIP- $1.85M, MF- $575K Summer 2023
Other Significant
Amount Spent Amount Anticipated Funding Planning has
Project Status Capital Projects Budget to date Feb 2023 Remaining Construction Besides T1 Occurred
T1- $7M T1- $48K T1- $6.95M
African American Holistic Resource Center GF- $250K GF- $133K GF- $117K FY25 X X X
Grant- $1M Grant- $0 Grant- $1M
CIP- $400K CIP- $0 CIP- $400K
Cedar Rose 2-5, 5-12 Play Structures PT- $875K PT- $0 PT- $875K FY24 X X X
- . T1- $300K T1- $84K T1- $216K
Civic Center Upper Plaza -Turtle Island Project Improvements Grant- $592K Grant- $0 Grant- $592K FY24 X X X X
Harrison Park Restroom Renovation T1- $450K T13$0 T1- $450K FY24 X X X
T1- $7M T1- $208K T1- $6.8M
MLK Jr. Youth Services Center/YAP Renovation Grant- $1.2M Grants- $47K Grants- $1.9M FY25 X X X X
Earmark- $750k Earmark- $0K Earmark- $750K
Ohlone Park Lighting T1- $700k T1- $20K T1- $680k FY25 X X X
Ohlone Park Restroom T1- $500k T1- $20K T1- $480k FY25 X X X
Construction Projects in Design/Planning Santa Fe ROW: Convert 4 blocks to New Park %args 2?/|M (Tsiar239$02K78K (Tsiargz ziA?M FY25 X X X X
Tom Bates Restroom, Soccer Field, PB Courts CIP- $1.5M CIP- $0 CIP- $1.5M FY24-FY25 X X X X
Waterfront: Cesar Chavez Park Restroom T1- $445K T1- $0 T1- $445K FY25 X X
Waterfront: Cesar Chavez Perimeter Pathway SCC Grant- $2.1M__ [SCC Grant- $0 SCC Grant- $2.1M FY26 X X X
T1- $595K T1- $222K T1- $373K
Waterfront: DE Dock Replacement MF- $5.5M MF- $0 MF- $5.5M FY25 X X X
SCC Grant- $1.6M _ [SCC Grant- $0 SCC Grant- $1.6M
Waterfront: K Dock Restroom Renovation T1- $495K T1- $0 T1- $495K FY25 X X
. . MF- $300K MF- $42K MF- $258K
Waterfront- Dredging Main Channel SSC Grant- $7.4M__|SSC Grant- $0 SSC Grant- 57.4M | 7Y X X X X
Waterfront- South Cove West Parking Lot SCC Grant - $1M SCC Grant- $0 SCC Grant- $1M FY25 X X X X
. T1- $7M T1- $535K T1- $6.46M
Willard Clubhouse and Restroom CIP- $500K CIP- $0 CIP- $500K FY24-FY25 X X X X
Aquatic Park Dreamland-2-12 Play Structure*** e
Codornices Park 2-5 and 5-12 Play Structures*** e
Glendale - Laloma Park 2-5 and 5-12 Play Structures*** e —
PT- $7K PT-$1K PT- $6K
James Kenney Park Skate Area CIP- $40K CIP- $17K CIP- $23K X X X X
Design/Planning Only Projects -Construction Not|John Hinkel Park Hut- Conceptual Design Only PT- $151K PT- $39K PT-$112K X X X X
Funded Waterfront: Shorebird Park 2-12 Play Structure*** CIP-$200k
Waterfront: Bike Park - Conceptual Design CIP- $100K CIP- $51K CIP- $49K X X X
Waterfront- South Sailing Basin Dredging CIP- $350K CIP- $0 CIP- $350K X X
) - CIP- $372K
Waterfront: Waterfront Specific Plan-BMASP CIP- $1.05MMF- $2K|CIP- $678K MF-$2K |MF- $0 X X X X
Waterfront: Pier-Water Transportation EIR/Design SCC Grant- $2.9M _[SCC Grant- $0 SCC Grant- $2.9M X X X

*Funding Sources

Cat Res- Catastrophic Reserve

CIP- Capital Improvement Fund

GF- General Fund

MF- Marina Fund

PT- Parks Tax

SCC Grant- State Coast Conservancy Grant
T1- Measure T1, Phase 1 and 2

**in-kind contribution of $4M from Berkeley Commons Project.

***funding re-allocated because of increase in construction costs for existing projects. Page 58



PW Capital Projects Not in Construction in Spring / Summer 2023

Page 41 of 46

Project Status

Projects in Construction or have been awarded

Anticipated Public- Matching Significant
Capital Projects Budget Construction  Public-Facing Serving Funds Planning has
Fire Station # Roof Upgrades CIP-$422,245 now X X
Corp Yard Lift Pits- Building G CIP-$380,000 complete X X
Fire Station #7 Fire Alarm CP Replacement CIP-$27,452 FY23 . X X
Old City Hall & Veteran's Building Leak Repair GF-$68,000 complete X X X
WBSC HVAC Evaluation CIP-$16,698 complete X X
MHSC Roof Repair CIP-$44,744 FY24 X X
1947 Center Street Bottle Fill Stations CIP-$27,661 complete X X
2180 Milvia Carpet Replacement-CCB Phase 2 CIP-$185,283 complete X X
Civic Center Door Card Readers CIP-$82,569 complete X X
On Call HVAC Services CIP-$42,186 complete . X X
Retaining Wall- 1322 Glendale Ave CIP-$436,510 now X X X
CIP- Meas F-
Street Rehab FY 2021 31(;22168;5 ﬁ::s’%o_o SB1- X X X X
$2,300.00 $1,000,000 $2,195,303 now
CIP-
Street Rehab FY 2022 f/lze’;g%ng_o Meas F- SB1- X X X X
$2,700,000 $155,000 $2,195,303 now
Wildcat Canyon Emergency Repairs CIP-$148,919 X X X X
Meas F-
CIP- $155,000 CIP
Street Rehab FY 2023 $2,131,875 (PAVING X X X X
Meas BB- FUNDS)- SB1-
$2,980,000 $3,250,000 $2,195,303 now
CIP-$974,402 Meas BB- Private
FY20 Sidewalk Repair Program Meas F- $1,279,800 Party- X X X X
$220,200 SB1-$100,000 $250,000 now
CIP-
. ’ $1,253,571
Sidewalk Shaving- FY2020 Meas F- SB1-$399,800 Meas BB- X X X X
$47,548 $420,000 now
. Streetlight- GF-
UUD Grizzly Peak #48 CIP-$274,911 $47,34g $949,256 | now X X X X
Meas BB-
MLK Jr. Way Vision Zero Quick Build CIP-$385,140 " Meas BB- X X X X
Streetlight- B&P-
$129000
$162,000 now
University Ave Bus Stop Improvements CIP-$200,000 g;ﬁg?é?oﬁgtgé X X X X
now
) Meas F-
Ashby/San Pablo Traffic Improvements CIP-$242,080 Meas BB- X X X X
$27,198
$825,422 now
. . Meas BB-
7th/ Anthony Traffic Signal Project CIP-$82,559 $334.,500 X X X X
now
. . . CIP-$150,000-
Hopkins Street Corridor Project Tier 1 now X X X
BerkDOT GF-$184,283 now X X
Dwight and California Intersection Improvements GF-$399,998 Meas BB- cIp- X X X X
’ $348,478 $50,000 now




PW Capital Projects Not in Construction in Spring / Summer 2023

Page 42 of 46

Anticipated Public- Matching Significant
Project Status Capital Projects Budget Construction  Public-Facing Serving Funds Planning has
) . Meas B-
Woolsey Street and Eton Ave Traffic Calming CIP-$38,743 $187.270 now X X X X
Ashby-Newbury Traffic Calming CIP-$50,000 now X X X
GF-$1,000,000
Southside Complete Streets CIP- (paving Meas BB- Capital X X X X
funds) $1,082,800 Grants-Fed-|
$4,987,860 UC-$2,254,548 $9,335,000 now
. GF-$99,897
T1 PH2 Pathway Repairs CIP-$50,000 T1-$200,000 now X X X X
1947 Center Street T1-$1 /800,000 now X X X X
PW Corp Yard Improvements-Green Building T1-$1,700,000 FY24 X X X
PW Corp Yard Improvements-Deferred Maintenance T1-$350,000 FY25 X X X
PW Corp Yard Improvements-Building H T1-$600,000 FY24 . X X X
Storm Drain Improvements-Marin/Spruce T1-$600,000 now X X X X
T1 PH2 Sidewalks Maintenance and Safety Repair T1-$1,850,000 now X X X X
NBSC Upgrades- Kitchen & Data CIP-$202,683 FY24 X X . X
EV Charge Station CIP-$600,000 GF-$1,750,000 FY 24 X X X
Purchase of Electric Bikes GF-$25,000 FY 23 X X
Street Rehabilitation PCI Improvement Project-FY23 P X X X
$5,000,000 now
I . CIP-
Street Rehabilitation PCI Improvement Project-FY24 $9.100,000 Start of FY24 X X X
) . . UC Settlement-
. o o . Piedmont/Channing Traffic Circle $250,000 end of FY23 X X X
Projects Bidding /Construction in Spring-Summer Meas F- CIP
2023 :
T1-$6,750,000 625,000 P.
T1 Phase 2--Hopkins Corridor Improvements Mefs BB- 2”3 (Tier 1)- f;u?]\ggg X X X X
$2,160,000 $150,000 $2,977,000| TBD
Oxford & Telegraph/Channing Garage Restroom X X X X
T1-$406,350 FY24
Restrooms in the ROW X X X X
T1-$1,610,000 FY23-FY25
PW Corp Yard Improvements-Wash Station T1-$200,000 FY24 X X X

Project Status

Significant
Amount Spent Amount Public- Matching Planning has
Capital Projects Budget to date Feb 2023 Remaining Public-Facing Serving Funds Occurred
CIP- $335,000 CIP- $48,790 CIP- $286,210
Retaining Wall & Storm Drain Repair %9232?7?10“' gé%f‘gof’)torm' %Z?’Zr"%frm' FY24 X X X X
SB1- $290,000 SB1- $12,175 SB1- $277,825
Cameras in Public Right of Way GF-$1,293,889 GF-$0.00 GF-$1,293,889 FY24 X X
Bus Canopies/Bulbouts-Durant Complete Streets GF-$336,000 FY24 X X
Convert 62nd Street Between King Street, and Adeline Street into a cul de sac CIP-$300,000 FY24 X X .
Semi-Divert traffic bollards at the intersection of Newbury Street and Ashby Street CIP-$50,000 FY24 X X g
Implement State Law AB 43 for Reduced Speed Limits on High-Injury Commercial Corridord CIP-$50,000 FY24 X X Fdge ao




PW Capital Projects Not in Construction in Spring / Summer 2023

Page 43 of 46

Anticipated

ATTACHMENT 3B

Public-

Matching

Significant

Project Status

Projects in Design/Planning

Capital Projects Budget Construction  Public-Facing Serving Funds Planning has
ADA Transposition Plan Update Implementation - FY 23 Allocation CIP-$250,000 FY24 X X X
ADA Transposition Plan Update Implementation - FY 24 Allocation CIP-$500,000 FY25 X X X
Facilities Deferred Maintenance Investment (Increase in baseline) - FY 23 Allocation CIP-$250,000 FY24 X X X
Facilities Deferred Maintenance Investment (Increase in baseline) - FY 24 Allocation CIP-$500,000 FY25 X X X
Building Assessment CIP-$77,175 FY24 X X
Carpet Replacement CIP-$150,000 FY24 X X
Evidence Storage CIP-$36,750 FY24 X X
Public Safety Projects CIP-$150,000 FY24 X X
Roof Replacement CIP-$180,000 FY24 X X
Telegraph/Channing Elevator Upgrade CIP-$3,600,000 ggi)itgzzt pendng: FY24 X X X X
EBCE Solar & Storage at Fire Station #3 CIP-$600,000 FY24-FY25 X X
Old City Hall Temporary Fire Sprinklers CIP-$73,207 FY24 X X
PSB Cooling Redundancy GF-$209,190 FY25 . X X
STAIR Center ADA CIP-$412,640 FY24 X X X
Civic Center Vision & Imp Plan Phase 2 GF-$200,000 FY23 X X X
Corp Yard Comprehensive Plan CIP-$447,344 FY24 X X
PSB Bicycle Bunker Roof Repair CIP-$179,962 FY24 X X
CIP-$2,127,562 Meas BB-$2,980,000

Street Rehab FY 2024 Meas F-$155.000 SBA.£2 105 303 EY24 X X X X
Emergency Power Supply Solar Batteries T1-$400,000 FY25 . X X
South Berkeley Senior Center T1-$3,000,000 FY25-26 X X X
Fire Station #2 Improvements T1-$1,536.765 FY24-25 X X
Fire Station #6 Improvements T1-$1.213.235 FY24-25 X

Bollard Conversion to Landscaping T1-$150,000 FY24 . X X
Strawberry Creek Culverts Repairs CIP-$250,000 Meas M-$926,720 FY24 X X X X

Page 61



Other Capital Projects Not in Construction in Spring / Summer 2023

Page 44 of 46

Amount Spent

Amount

Anticipated
Construction/

Public-

ATTACHMENT 3C

Public-

Significant
Other Funding Planning has

Project Status

Business Licensing System Replacement CIP - $500k $0 CIP - $500k X X
Construction Projects in |Jail Control Panel Replacement CIP - $500k $0 CIP - $500k FY 2024 X X X
Design/Planning Paperless Contract Workflow System CIP - $400k $0 CIP - $400k FY 2024 X X
Property Tax Assessment System Replacement CIP - $450k $0 CIP - $450k X X

Capital Projects

to date Feb 2023

Remaining

Implementation

Facing

Serving

Besides T1 and GF Occurred

Page 62



Measure T1 Phase 2 Proiect Status Matrix

Page 45 of 46

ATTACHMENT 4

Updated:04/13/2023
Category Project Name/Description Budgeted Leverages other funds| Completed / In Design Apply Addl 15% | Possible to | Additional |Public-Facing| Matching Significant Notes
Bidding / Escalation? | Escalation Reduce Funding Funds Planning has
Encumbered Scope? Required Occurred
Care and Shelter and [ MLK Jr. Youth Services Center 7,000,000 [$1.2M FEMA grant; X Yes 1,050,000 Yes - X X X Conceptual design complete,
Non- Departmental $750k federal earmark headed to ZAB in late Summer.
Citywide Facilities Additional funding available in
PRW CIP FY25.
South Berkeley Senior Center 3,000,000 |$1.5M FEMA grant X Yes 450,000 Yes - X X Finalizing FEMA grant before
design.
African American Holistic Resource Center ** 7,000,000 [$1M federal earmark; X Yes 1,050,000 No See note* X X 4K and 6K sq ft building require
$250k GF additional $3.15M and $6.85M
to complete.
Restrooms in the ROW Telegraph/Channing 450,000 [$260k UC settlement X No No - X X X Project bidding.
Restrooms in the ROW San Pablo/University 450,000 X Yes 67,500 No 67,500 X X At 50% design, location being
identified.
Restrooms in the ROW Alcatraz/Adeline 450,000 X Yes 67,500 No 67,500 X X At 50% design, location being
identified.
Camps Cazadero Dining Hall & ADA Improvements 400,000 |$800k from nonprofit X No - - - - Required by lease.
tenant
Buildings in Parks Willard Clubhouse/Restroom Replacement 7,000,000 [$500k of PRW CIP X Yes 1,050,000 No X X X Scope already reduced. ZAB
FY24; $175K Parks Tax hearing scheduled in April.
Tom Bates Restroom, Community Space, Soccer Field 2,900,000 [$1.5M of PRW CIP X Yes 435,000 Yes - X X X At 35% design. $3M Grant
and PB Courts FY24; $175K Parks Tax application pending for parking
lot and other amenities
Harrison Park - Restroom Renovation 450,000 X Yes 67,500 No 67,500 X X In conceptual design
Ohlone Park - New Restroom 500,000 X Yes 75,000 No 75,000 X X At 35% design, location and
model determined.
Parks - Play Ohlone (Milvia) Ages 2-5, 5-12, Garden Mural, 500,000 |$558k Parks Tax X Yes 75,000 No - - - - Contract awarded; gap covered
structures Exercise by FY23 PRW CIP.
John Hinkel Lower Ages 2-12, picnic, parking 408,510 |$565k Parks Tax + $11k X No - - - - Completed
GF CIP
Grove Park Ages play structures 2-5, 5-12 yrs old 700,000 |$S762k Parks Tax; $392k X Yes 105,000 No - - - - Contract awarded; Gap covered
GF CIP; $503k Prop 68 by FY23 PRW CIP
Parks Aquatic Park Tide Tubes Clean out, Phase 1B 206,490 X No - - - Completed
Ohlone Park - Lighting 700,000 X Yes 105,000 Yes X X At 35% design. In public process.
Civic Center Park Upper Plaza Improvements - Turtle 300,000 |$596k Clean CA grant; X Yes 45,000 No See note* X X X LPC approval received March
Island Monument $750K Parks Tax; Art 2023. $880k needed to complete
Funding from Civic Arts additional scope.
Fund
Pools King Pool Tile and Plaster Replacement 350,000 |$178k GF CIP X No - - - Completed
Waterfront Marina Timber Piling Replacements 1,200,000 |$300k MF; $1.7M GF x Yes 180,000 Yes X X X Project bidding.
Marina D and E Dock Replacement 595,000 |$5.5M DBAW loan X Yes 89,250 No 89,250 X X At 60% design.
(MF); $1.5M State
earmark
Marina K Dock Restroom Renovation 495,000 X Yes 74,250 No X In pre-design phase.
Cesar Chavez Park - New Restroom (on Spinnaker) 445,000 X Yes 66,750 No X In pre-design phase.
Streets T1 Streets Contribution to Annual Street Paving 6,750,000 X Yes 1,012,500 Yes - X X X At 65% design.
Improvements
Bollard Conversion to Landscaping 150,000 |Stormwater Fund, X Yes 22,500 Yes - X Not yet started-finding locations
Parks Tax Fund
id Ik & Safety Repairs 1,850,000 |$250k (Multiple X No No - - - Project in construction.
sources)
Pathways Pathway Repairs/Improvements 200,000 |$50k Annual Sidewalk X No 30,000 No X X X At 35% design.
Prg
Storm Storm Drain Imprv - Marin/Virginia/Spruce/Hinkel 600,000 X No - - - Completed
Facilities 1947 Center Street Improvements 1,800,000 X Yes 270,000 No 270,000 X X HVAC component is at 35%

design; seismic assessment to
start by June 2023.

Page 63




Page 46 of 46

Measure T1 Phase 2 Proiect Status Matrix

Updated:04/13/2023
Category Project Name/Description Budgeted Leverages other funds Completed / In Design Apply Addl 15% Possible to | Additional |Public-Facing| Matching Significant Notes
Bidding / Escalation? | Escalation Reduce Funding Funds Planning has
Encumbered Scope? Required Occurred
Fire Station #2 1,536,765 |FY24 PW ADA funds X Yes 217,500 No X X At 50% design. PW CIP funding
will fill gap
Fire Station #6 1,213,235 |FY24 PW ADA funds X Yes 181,985 No X X At 35% design. PW CIP funding
will fill gap
Corporation Yard -Gate, Paving, Parking, Fuel Island 350,000 X Yes 52,500 Yes Not yet started.
Corporation Yard - Wash Station Compliance 200,000 X Yes 30,000 No Not yet started.
Corporation Yard - Green Room Lockers, Bathroom, 1,700,000 X X Yes 255,000 No 255,000 X Design completed, project
Training Room, Floor, Cabinets - Building B bidding.
Corporation Yard - Storage Room - Roof Repair Bldg H 600,000 X Yes 90,000 No 90,000 X At 50% design.
Telegraph Channing Garage Restroom 300,000 X No No X X At 90% Design. Additional
funding not needed.
NBSC-Emergency Power Supply Solar Batteries 500,000 X No No Additional funding not needed.
Totals 53,250,000 981,750 iditional Funding Required
Art 650,000 | *Note:
Staffing / FESS 7,100,000 | 880,000 Gap - CC Turtle Island
350,000 Gap-NBSC
Gap-AAHRC 4,000 sq ft
Total Phase 2 Budget 61,000,000 3,150,000 replacement
5,361,750 Gap- Includes Escalation
COLOR KEY
® Projects that are completed or bidding or encumbered | 880,000 | | | |Gap - CC Turtle Island |
® Projects that need escalation to complete | 350,000 | | | |Gap»NBSC |

Page 64



Fiscal Year 2023
Second Amendment to Annual
Appropriation Ordinance (AAO#2)

Budget and Finance Policy Committee
20 April 2023

03

Page 65


sbunting
Typewritten Text
03


FY23 AAO#2 ALL FUNDS SUMMARY

Fund Name Recommended Recommended Total
Carryover Adjustments

General Fund (011) $100,000 $2,268,270 $2,368,270
Capital Improvement Fund (501) 0 1,885 1,885
All Other Funds 103,685 25,266,940 25,370,625

203,685 27,537,095 27,740,780

» General Fund for unanticipated operational expenses and technical adjustment from AAO#1
= Other funds carryover to pay final invoices and continue projects underway

» Other funds adjustments primarily related to Housing Trust fund projects; HHSC programs,
including SCU; capital projects and debt service

Page 66 2



RECOMMENDED GENERAL FUND
ADJUSTMENTS

Adjustment Department and Description Funding
Amount

Elections Cost
Storm-Related Expenses

Eviction Moratorium Outreach

Staffing Assessment
Augmentation

Subtotal

FY 22 Excess Equity Calculation
to Reserves

Total New Adjustments

Homeless Outreach Coordinator
Total Carryover+ Adjustments

City Clerk for November 2022
PRW for tree work related to storms

Rent Board for mailings on eviction moratorium

BPD for increased cost for staffing assessment
related to Reimagining Public Safety

Transfer FY 22 Excess Equity from AAO#1 to
Reserves

HHSC Carryover for Coordinator

$375,831
200,000

120,000
50,000

745,831
1,522,439

2,268,270

100,000
2,368,270

Page 67 3



CONCLUSION

= Purpose:
= Review of Fiscal Year 2023 AAO#2 Adjustments
» Technical adjustments and no funding for new programs/projects

= Next Steps:
» First reading of AAO#2 at Council May 9 meeting

» Questions and Responses

Page 68



Page 5 of 27

{ CITY 2F

-

o
m
5
m
—

m

Action Calendar

Office of the City Manager

Date: April 20, 2023
To: Budget and Finance Policy Committee
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Sharon Friedrichsen, Budget Manager
Subject: Amendment: FY 2023 Annual Appropriations Ordinance

RECOMMENDATION

Receive a report on the City’s second amendment to the FY 2023 Annual
Appropriations Ordinance and provide comment to staff prior to the report being
submitted for the May 9, 2023 Council meeting.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

On June 28, 2022 the City Council adopted the FY 2023 Budget, authorizing gross
appropriations of $754,176,624 and net appropriations of $625,939,999 (net of dual
appropriations).

City Council approved the First Amendment to the FY 2023 Annual Appropriations
Ordinance (AAO#1) on January 17, 2023, which increased the gross appropriations to
$932,466,575 and net appropriations to $791,136,901. The amendment re-authorized
some funding previously committed in FY 2022 and approved some new expenditures,
including new grant fund appropriations.

This Second Amendment to the FY 2023 Annual Appropriations Ordinance (AAO#2)
totals $27,740,780 (gross) and $29,458,924 (net) and increases gross appropriations to
$960,207,355 and net appropriations to $820,595,825. The proposed changes are
primarily unencumbered carryover and adjustments to continue and start capital
projects and other City initiatives.

BACKGROUND

The Annual Appropriations Ordinance (AAQ) establishes the expenditure limits by fund
for FY 2023. Throughout the year, the City takes actions that amend the adopted
budget. These may include, but are not limited to, the acceptance of new grants,
revisions to existing grants, adjustments to adopted expenditure authority due to
emergency needs, and transfers in accordance with Council’s fiscal policies.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 e TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099 Page 69
E-Mail: manager@cityofberkeley.info Website: http://www.cityofberkeley.info/manager



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/manager

Page 6 of 27

Action Calendar
Amendment: FY 2023 Annual Appropriations Ordinance April 20, 2023

The adopted budget is also amended annually to reflect the re-appropriation of prior
year funds for contractual commitments (i.e. encumbrances) as well as unencumbered
carryover of unexpended funds previously authorized for one-time, non-recurring
purposes. These budget modifications are periodically presented to the Council in the
form of an Ordinance amending the Annual Appropriations Ordinance, which formally
requires a two-thirds vote of the City Council.

When Council adopts an appropriations ordinance (budget), it is based on projected
revenues and expenditures. If fund balances do not support the requested level of
expenditures, no carryover is recommended.

The proposed changes, presented in their entirety in Exhibit A, are summarized as
follows:

Recommended Recommended
Carryover Adjustments Total
General Fund (011) $ 100,000 $ 2,268,270 $ 2,368,270
Capital Improvement Fund (501) $ - $ 1,885 §$ 1,885
All Other Funds $ 103,685 $ 25,266,940 $ 25,370,625
$ 203,685 $ 27,537,095 $ 27,740,780

Below is a summary of the FY 2022 Unencumbered Carryover and the FY 2023
Adjustments for the City’s General Fund and Other Funds.

General Fund: The General Fund includes recommended unencumbered carryover of
$100,000 and recommended adjustments of $2,268,270 for the following items:

Recommended Carryover
o $100,000 for a FY 2022 Council Budget Referral for a Homeless Outreach
Coordinator for South Shattuck Avenue and Adeline Street

Recommended Adjustments

o $375,831 for the City Clerk for the cost of the November 2022 election.

o $1,522,439 of FY 2022 Excess Equity allocation to fund the Strategic Reserve
Fund ($837,341) and the Catastrophic Reserve Fund ($685,098).

o $200,000 for Parks, Recreation and Waterfront for tree work and removal caused
by the recent storms.

o $50,000 of additional funding (to augment the existing $70,000 in funding for a
total cost of $120,000) to the Police Department to study and assess police
staffing to optimize police resources in responding to public safety needs.

o Reimagine Public Safety Task Force in early 2022, Council approved funding of
$70,000 to study and assess police staffing and alternative responses

o $120,000 for the Rent Stabilization Board to carryout mailings and outreach for
the Eviction Moratorium Transition and End.

All of the General Fund items listed above are being funded from the available FY 2022
General Fund Excess Equity balance.

Page 2 Page 70



Page 7 of 27

. . Action Calendar
Amendment: FY 2023 Annual Appropriations Ordinance April 20, 2023

Other Funds: Other City funds (including capital improvement project funds) total
recommended carryover of $103,685 and recommended adjustments of $25,537,095
includes the following allocations:

Recommended Carryover

o $67,703 in Playground Camp Fund for the final invoice for the Cazadero Camp
Landslide project.

o $9,266 in One Time Grant Fund for the continuation of the Pier Ferry Study.

o $19,996 in Measure T1 to pay invoices for the Fire Station #2 Improvements
project.

o $6,618 in Marina Fund for continuation of the Pier Ferry Study project and the
Sea Level Rise project.

Recommended Adjustments

o $2,167,500 in Measure U1 fund for the Berkeley Way, BFHP, and Hope Center
contracts and to increase funding for the Housing Retention Program.

o $30,071 in Library Grants Fund for Lunch at the Library grant from California
State Library.

o $50,000 in Library Fund for programming funds for appearance of UC Berkeley
School of Law staff at Northbrae Church.

o $109,260 in Gilman Sports Field Fund for the Gilman Turf Replacement and
increase in PG&E cost.

o $1,694,783 in Affordable Housing Mitigation Fund for Housing Trust Fund
projects, St. Paul and Ephesian.

o $608,406 in Condo Conversion Program for Housing Trust Fund projects,
Ephesian.

o $101,300 in Playground Camps Funds for the Cazadero Camp Landslide project,
Berkeley Tuolumne Camp inventory cost, and for donation from the Friends of
the Berkeley Tuolumne Camp.

o $118,000 in Measure B Local Streets and Road for continuation of the University
Avenue Bus Stop project.

a $255,100 in Measure F — Alameda VRF for the HSIP Sacramento Pedestrian
Crossing Safety project and MLK Jr Way Vision Zero Quick Build project.

o ($155,975) in Measure BB — Local Streets & Roads reversing appropriation in FY
2023 AAO#1 for the BeST Plan Update as funds are no longer needed.

o ($23,969) in Measure BB — Bike & Pedestrian reversing AAO#1 appropriation to
adjust project budget for Woolsey-Fulton Bike Blvd. STI project.

o $139,569 in Measure BB — Paratransit for the Paratransit Program funding

o $313,573 in Parks Tax Funds for 600 Addison project, Ohlone Park Improvement
project, NexGen Software Maintenance, bench donation, and increased water
and electricity costs.

o $1,600,000 in Measure GG Funds for additional overtime budget to cover
overtime expenses in FY 2023.

o $250,000 in UC Settlement Fund for Village of Love Community Agency funding.

o $6,853 in Tobacco Control for unexpended grant cycle.

Page 3 Page 71



Page 8 of 27

. . Action Calendar
Amendment: FY 2023 Annual Appropriations Ordinance April 20, 2023

o $46,060 in Capital Grants — State Fund for Milvia Bikeway project and reversing
AAO#1 to adjust project budget of Woolsey-Fulton Bike Blvd. STI project.

o ($180,000) in Capital Grants — Local Fund to reverse AAO#1 to adjust the project
budget for the Telegraph Study and Preliminary Engineering.

o $1,189,752 in HUD/HOME Fund to appropriate funding for the HOME Grant, the
Grinnell project (formerly Blake Apartments).

o $300,000 in Housing Mitigation for the appropriation of the balance of the HESG-
CARES Act.

o $14,091 in Health (General) Fund for Health grant budget adjustments.

o $18,500 in TCM/Link Fund for the projected cost of the FY 2023 Aging Target
Case Management expenditures.

o $49,582 in Senior Nutrition (Title Ill) Fund for Congregate Meals and Meals on
Wheels programs,

o $55,000 in C.F.P. Title X Fund for reproductive health and education program

o $24,555 in Senior Supportive Social Services Fund for Senior outreach and
assistance.

o $51,033 in Family Care Support Program Fund for family caregiver program and
Senior Center activities.

o $24,408 in Housing Mitigation Fund for Housing Trust Fund projects, Ephesian.

o $5,384,407 in One-Time Grant Funds for projects in Health, Housing &
Community Services, Parks Recreation & Waterfront, Planning, and Public
Works, that are listed as Item Numbers 49 - 57 in Attachment 2.

o $10,000 in Shelter+Care County Fund for Shelter Plus Care-Alameda County
Housing Assistance payments.

o $52,64 in Bio-Terrorism Grant Fund for the Public Health Emergency
Preparedness and Cities Readiness Initiative.

o $4,910,146 in ARPA Recovery Fund for the Specialized Care Unit, from Council
Resolution No. 70,642-N.S.

o $1,885 in Capital Improvement Fund for remaining Resources for Community
Development contract.

o $100,000 in Measure T1 Fund for the Ohlone Park Improvements project and
Fire Station #2 Improvements project.

o $896,875 in Measure M — Street and Watershed Improvement Debt Service
Fund for revision of debt service budget for FY 2023 to fully cover principal and
interest payments.

o $2,759,200 in Measure T1 — Infrastructure and Facilities Debt Service Fund for
revision of debt service budget for FY 2023 to fully cover principal and interest
payments.

o $5,452,871 in Measure O Debt Service Fund for revision of debt service budget
for FY 2023 to fully cover principal and interest payments.

o $91,200 in Marina Funds for a memorial bench and to cover utilities increases.

o $320,651 in CFD No. 1 Disaster Fire Protection Fund to help balance negative
fund balance to Fund 779 as tax revenues are no longer collected.

o $300,000 in Tourism BID Fund for Visit Berkeley Contract based on projected
revenues for FY 2023.

Page 4 Page 72



Page 9 of 27

. . Action Calendar
Amendment: FY 2023 Annual Appropriations Ordinance April 20, 2023

This report will be presented to the City Council at the May 9, 2023 meeting.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS

There are no identifiable environmental effects or opportunities associated with the act
of adopting the budget/appropriations ordinance/amendments. Actions included in the
budget will be developed and implemented in a manner that is consistent with the City’s
environmental sustainability goals and requirements.

CONCLUSION

The AAO#2 allows the City to amend the current FY 2023 Revised Budget and re-
appropriate funds from FY 2022 to FY 2023 for contractual commitments that need to
be paid and to increase appropriations for unbudgeted and unanticipated expenses. It
revises the budget to reflect approved carryover requests and adjustments in both
discretionary and non-discretionary funds.

Staff has conducted a detailed analysis of the individual carryover and other adjustment
requests submitted by departments and is presenting carryover and other adjustment
recommendations for projects that are either currently under contract, represent Council
priorities, and/or are considered critical.

CONTACT PERSON
Sharon Friedrichsen, Budget Manager, City Manager’s Office, 981-7000
Maricar Dupaya, Senior Management Analyst, City Manager’s Office, 981-7000

Attachments:
1: Ordinance
Exhibit A: Annual Appropriation Ordinance Summary of Appropriations by Fund
2: FY 2022 Recommended Carryover and FY 2023 Recommended Adjustment
(AAO #2)

Page 5 Page 73



Page 10 of 27

ORDINANCE NO.

AMENDING THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE NO. 7,851-N.S. FOR

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Berkeley as follows:

Section 1.

FISCAL YEAR 2023

That the Annual Appropriations Ordinance based on the budget for FY 2023

submitted by the City Manager and passed by the City Council be amended as follows
and as summarized in Exhibit A:

A. General Fund (Funds 001-099)

B

C.

. Special Funds (Funds 100-199)

Grant Funds (Funds 300-399)

Capital Projects Funds (Funds 500-550)

. Debt Service Fund (Funds 551-599)

. Enterprise Funds (Funds 600-669)

Internal Service Funds (Funds 146, 670-699)

. Successor Agency (Funds 760-769)

Agency Funds (Funds 771-799)

Other Funds (Funds 800-899)

. Total

Total General Fund

Add: Total Other Than General Fund
Gross Revenue Appropriated

Less: Dual Appropriations

Less: Revolving/Internal Service Funds
Net Revenue Appropriated

316,240,491
162,330,999
120,958,749
91,787,730
15,044,847
178,216,604
59,656,349
145,166
8,587,078

7,239,344

316,240,491
643,966,865

960,207,355
-79,955,181
-59,656,349

820,595,825

Section 2. The City Manager is hereby permitted, without further authority from the City
Council, to make the following transfers by giving written notice to the Director of Finance:

a. From the General Fund to the General Fund — Stability Reserve Fund;

Catastrophic Reserve Fund; Paramedic Tax Fund; Health State Aid Realignment;
Fair Election Fund; Capital Improvement Fund; Phone System Replacement;
Equipment Replacement Fund; Public Liability Fund; Catastrophic Loss Fund;
Police Employee Retiree Health Assistance Plan; Safety Members Pension Fund;

and Sick Leave Entitlement Fund.

Page 74



Page 11 of 27

. To the General Fund from the General Fund — Stability Reserves Fund;
Catastrophic Reserves Fund; Community Development Block Grant Fund; Street
Lighting Assessment District Fund; Zero Waste Fund; Marina Operations and
Maintenance Fund; Sanitary Sewer Operation Fund; Clean Storm Water Fund;
Permit Service Center Fund; Parking Meter Fund; Unified Program (CUPA); IT
Cost Allocation Fund; and Health State Aid Realignment Fund.

. To the First Source Fund from the Parks Tax Fund; Capital Improvement Fund;
and the Marina Fund.

. From the Measure U1 Fund to the Workers’ Compensation Fund
. From the Catastrophic Reserve Fund to the Playground Camp Fund

From Gilman Sports Field Fund to Gilman Field Reserve Fund

. From Measure FF Fund to Paramedic Tax Fund.

. From the American Rescue Plan Fund to the General Fund; Sports Field Fund;
Playground Camp Fund; Marina Fund; Off-Street Parking Fund; and Parking Meter
Fund.

From Capital Improvement Fund to PERS Savings Fund; Berkeley Repertory
Theater Fund; and 2010 COP (Animal Shelter) Fund.

To the Public Art Fund from the Parks Tax Fund; Capital Improvement Fund; and
the Marina Fund.

. To CFD#1 District Fire Protection Bond (Measure Q) from Special Tax Bonds
CFD#1 ML-ROOS.

To Private Sewer Lateral Fund from Sanitary Sewer Operation Fund.
. To Catastrophic Loss Fund from Permit Service Center Fund.
. To Catastrophic Loss Fund from Unified Program (CUPA) Fund.

. To the Building Purchases and Management Fund from General Fund; Health
(General) Fund; Rental Housing Safety Program Fund; Measure B Local Streets
& Road Fund; Employee Training Fund; Zero Waste Fund; Sanitary Sewer
Operation Fund; Clean Storm Water Fund; Permit Service Center Fund; Off Street
Parking Fund; Parking Meter Fund; Unified Program (CUPA) Fund; Building
Purchases & Management Fund; Building Maintenance Fund; Central Services
Fund; and Health State Aide Realignment Trust Fund.

. To Equipment Replacement Fund from General Fund; Mental Health Services Act

Fund; Health (Short/Doyle) Fund; Vector Control Fund; Paramedic Tax Fund;
Playground Camp Fund; State Transportation Tax Fund; Rental Housing Safety

Page 75



Page 12 of 27

Program Fund; Parks Tax Fund; Street Light Assessment District Fund; Zero
Waste Fund; Marina Operations/Maintenance Fund; Sanitary Sewer Operation
Fund; Clean Storm Water Fund; Permit Service Center Fund; Parking Meter Fund;
Equipment Maintenance Fund; Building Maintenance Fund; and Central Services
Fund.

. To the Equipment Maintenance Fund from General Fund; Health (General) Fund;
Mental Health Services Act Fund; Health (Short/Doyle) Fund; Vector Control Fund;
Paramedic Tax Fund; Library - Discretionary Fund; Playground Camp Fund; State
Transportation Tax Fund; Rental Housing Safety Program Fund; Rent Stabilization
Board Fund; Parks Ta Fund; Street Light Assessment District Fund; FEMA Fund;
Zero Waste Fund; Marina Operations/Maintenance Fund; Sanitary Sewer
Operation Fund; Clean Storm Water Fund; Permit Service Center Fund; Off Street
Parking Fund; Parking Meter Fund; Equipment Maintenance Fund; Building
Maintenance Fund; and Central Services Fund.

To the Building Maintenance Fund from the General Fund; Health (General) Fund;
Health (Short/Doyle) Fund; Measure B Local Street & Road Fund; Parks Tax Fund;
Street Light Assessment District Fund; Zero Waste Fund; Sanitary Sewer
Operation Fund; Clean Storm Water Fund; Off Street Parking Fund; Parking Meter
Fund; Equipment Maintenance Fund; Building Maintenance Fund; and Mental
Health State Aid Realignment Fund.

. To the Central Services Fund from the General Fund; First Source Fund; Health

(Short/Doyle) Fund; Library-Discretionary Fund; Playground Camp Fund; Rent
Stabilization Board Fund; Zero Waste Fund; Marina Operations/Maintenance
Fund; Sanitary Sewer Operation; Building Purchases & Management Fund;
Building Maintenance Fund; Central Services Fund; and Mental Health State Aid
Realignment Fund.

To Information Technology Cost Allocation Plan Fund from General Fund; Target
Case Management/Linkages Fund; Health (Short/Doyle); Library Fund;
Playground Camp Fund; State Transportation Tax Fund; CDBG Fund; Rental
Housing Safety Program; Rent Stabilization Board Fund; Parks Tax Fund; Street
Light  Assessment District Fund; Zero Waste Fund; Marina
Operations/Maintenance Fund; Sanitary Sewer Operation; Clean Storm Water
Fund; Permit Service Center Fund; Off Street Parking Fund; Parking Meter Fund;
Unified Program (CUPA) Fund; Equipment Maintenance Fund; Building
Maintenance Fund; Information Technology Cost Allocation Plan Fund; Health
State Aid Realignment Trust Fund; and Mental Health State Aid Realignment
Fund.

. To the Workers' Compensation Self-Insurance Fund from General Fund; Special
Tax for Severely Disabled Measure E Fund; First Source Fund; HUD Fund; ESGP
Fund; Health (General) Fund; Target Case Management/Linkages Fund; Mental
Health Service Act Fund; Health (Short/Doyle) Fund; EPSDT Expansion Proposal
Fund; Senior Nutrition (Title Ill) Fund; C.F.P. Title X Fund; Fund Raising Activities
Fund; Berkeley Unified School District Grant; Vector Control Fund; Paramedic Tax
Fund; Alameda County Grants Fund; Senior Supportive Social Services Fund;

Page 76



Page 13 of 27

Family Care Support Program Fund; Domestic Violence Prevention — Vital
Statistics Fund; Affordable Housing Mitigation; Inclusionary Housing Program;
Library — Discretionary Fund; Playground Camp Fund; Community Action Program
Fund; State Proposition 172 Public Safety Fund; State Transportation Tax Fund;
CDBG Fund; Rental Housing Safety Program; Measure B Local State & Road
Fund; Measure B Bike & Pedestrian Fund; Measure B — Paratransit Fund; Measure
F Alameda County Vehicle Registration Fee Streets & Roads Fund; Measure BB
— Paratransit Fund; Fair Election Fund; Measure U1 Fund; One-Time Grant: No
Cap Expense Fund; Rent Stabilization Board Fund; Parks Tax Fund; Measure GG
— Fire Prep Tax Fund; Street Lighting Assessment District Fund; Employee
Training Fund; Private Percent — Art Fund; Measure T1 — Infrastructure & Facilities
Fund; FUND$ Replacement Fund; Capital Improvement Fund; FEMA Fund; CFD
#1 District Fire Protect Bond Fund; Special Tax Bonds CFD#1 ML-ROQOS Fund;
Shelter+Care HUD Fund; Shelter+Care County Fund; Zero Waste Fund; Marina
Operations/Maintenance Fund; Sanitary Sewer Operation Fund; Clean Storm
Water Fund; Private Sewer Lateral Fund; Permit Service Center Fund; Off-Street
Parking Fund; Parking Meter Fund; Unified Program (CUPA) Fund; Building
Purchases & Management Fund; Equipment Replacement Fund; Equipment
Maintenance Fund; Building Maintenance Fund; Central Services Fund; Workers’
Compensation Fund; Public Liability Fund; Information Technology Cost Allocation
Plan Fund; Health State Aid Realignment Trust Fund; Tobacco Control Trust Fund;
Mental Health State Aid Realignment Fund; Alameda Abandoned Vehicle
Abatement Authority; and Bio-Terrorism Grant Fund.

. To the Sick Leave and Vacation Leave Accrual Fund from General Fund; Special
Tax for Severely Disabled Measure E Fund; First Source Fund; HUD Fund; ESGP
Fund; Health (General) Fund; Target Case Management/Linkages Fund; Mental
Health Service Act Fund; Health (Short/Doyle) Fund; EPSDT Expansion Proposal
Fund; Senior Nutrition (Title Ill) Fund; C.F.P. Title X Fund; Fund Raising Activities
Fund; Berkeley Unified School District Grant; Vector Control Fund; Paramedic Tax
Fund; Alameda County Grants Fund; Senior Supportive Social Services Fund;
Family Care Support Program Fund; Domestic Violence Prevention — Vital
Statistics Fund; Affordable Housing Mitigation; Inclusionary Housing Program;
Library — Discretionary Fund; Playground Camp Fund; Community Action Program
Fund; State Proposition 172 Public Safety Fund; State Transportation Tax Fund;
CDBG Fund; Rental Housing Safety Program; Measure B Local State & Road
Fund; Measure B Bike & Pedestrian Fund; Measure B — Paratransit Fund; Measure
F Alameda County Vehicle Registration Fee Streets & Roads Fund; Measure BB
— Paratransit Fund; Fair Election Fund; Measure U1 Fund; One-Time Grant: No
Cap Expense Fund; Rent Stabilization Board Fund; Parks Tax Fund; Measure GG
— Fire Prep Tax Fund; Street Lighting Assessment District Fund; Employee
Training Fund; Private Percent — Art Fund; Measure T1 — Infrastructure & Facilities
Fund; FUND$ Replacement Fund; Capital Improvement Fund; FEMA Fund; CFD
#1 District Fire Protect Bond Fund; Special Tax Bonds CFD#1 ML-ROQOS Fund;
Shelter+Care HUD Fund; Shelter+Care County Fund; Zero Waste Fund; Marina
Operations/Maintenance Fund; Sanitary Sewer Operation Fund; Clean Storm
Water Fund; Private Sewer Lateral Fund; Permit Service Center Fund; Off-Street
Parking Fund; Parking Meter Fund; Unified Program (CUPA) Fund; Building
Purchases & Management Fund; Equipment Replacement Fund; Equipment

Page 77



Page 14 of 27

Maintenance Fund; Building Maintenance Fund; Central Services Fund; Workers’
Compensation Fund; Public Liability Fund; Information Technology Cost Allocation
Plan Fund; Health State Aid Realignment Trust Fund; Tobacco Control Trust Fund;
Mental Health State Aid Realignment Fund; Alameda Abandoned Vehicle
Abatement Authority; and Bio-Terrorism Grant Fund.

w. To the Payroll Deduction Trust Fund from General Fund; Special Tax for Severely
Disabled Measure E Fund; First Source Fund; HUD Fund; ESGP Fund; Health
(General) Fund; Target Case Management/Linkages Fund; Mental Health Service
Act Fund; Health (Short/Doyle) Fund; EPSDT Expansion Proposal Fund; Senior
Nutrition (Title Ill) Fund; C.F.P. Title X Fund; Fund Raising Activities Fund;
Berkeley Unified School District Grant; Vector Control Fund; Paramedic Tax Fund;
Alameda County Grants Fund; Senior Supportive Social Services Fund; Family
Care Support Program Fund; Domestic Violence Prevention — Vital Statistics Fund;
Affordable Housing Mitigation; Inclusionary Housing Program; Library -—
Discretionary Fund; Playground Camp Fund; Community Action Program Fund;
State Proposition 172 Public Safety Fund; State Transportation Tax Fund; CDBG
Fund; Rental Housing Safety Program; Measure B Local State & Road Fund;
Measure B Bike & Pedestrian Fund; Measure B — Paratransit Fund; Measure F
Alameda County Vehicle Registration Fee Streets & Roads Fund; Measure BB —
Paratransit Fund; Fair Election Fund; Measure U1 Fund; One-Time Grant: No Cap
Expense Fund; Rent Stabilization Board Fund; Parks Tax Fund; Measure GG —
Fire Prep Tax Fund; Street Lighting Assessment District Fund; Employee Training
Fund; Private Percent — Art Fund; Measure T1 — Infrastructure & Facilities Fund;
FUND$ Replacement Fund; Capital Improvement Fund; FEMA Fund; CFD #1
District Fire Protect Bond Fund; Special Tax Bonds CFD#1 ML-ROOS Fund;
Shelter+Care HUD Fund; Shelter+Care County Fund; Zero Waste Fund; Marina
Operations/Maintenance Fund; Sanitary Sewer Operation Fund; Clean Storm
Water Fund; Private Sewer Lateral Fund; Permit Service Center Fund; Off-Street
Parking Fund; Parking Meter Fund; Unified Program (CUPA) Fund; Building
Purchases & Management Fund; Equipment Replacement Fund; Equipment
Maintenance Fund; Building Maintenance Fund; Central Services Fund; Workers’
Compensation Fund; Public Liability Fund; Information Technology Cost Allocation
Plan Fund; Health State Aid Realignment Trust Fund; Tobacco Control Trust Fund;
Mental Health State Aid Realignment Fund; Alameda Abandoned Vehicle
Abatement Authority; and Bio-Terrorism Grant Fund.

Section 3. Copies of this Ordinance shall be posted for two days prior to adoption in the
display case located near the walkway in front of Council Chambers, 2134 Martin Luther
King Jr. Way. Within 15 days of adoption, copies of this Ordinance shall be filed at each
branch of the Berkeley Public Library and the title shall be published in a newspaper of
general circulation.

Page 78



Page 15 of 27

Attachment for Annual Appropriations Ordinance - Fiscal Year 2023

REVOLVING FUNDS/INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Appropriations are identified with revolving and internal service funds. Such funds
derive revenue by virtue of payment from other fund sources as benefits are received by
such funds, and the total is reflected in the "Less Revolving Funds and Internal Service
Funds" in item |. The funds are:

Employee Training Fund 949,429
Equipment Replacement Fund 11,947,462
Equipment Maintenance Fund 10,211,653
Building Maintenance Fund 5,045,988
Central Services Fund 413,953
Workers' Compensation Fund 6,488,740
Public Liability Fund 4,458,560
Information Technology Fund 20,140,564
Subtotal Revolving/Internal Service Funds $ 59,656,349

DUAL APPROPRIATIONS - WORKING BUDGET

Dual appropriations are identified with revenues generated by one fund and transferred
to another fund. Both funds are credited with the applicable revenue, and the total is
reflected in the "Less Dual Appropriations" in item |. The dual appropriations are:

Transfers to the General Fund
Indirect Cost Reimbursement

CDBG Fund 176,194
Street Light Assessment District Fund 155,018
Zero Waste Fund 2,727,548
Marina Enterprise Fund 456,077
Sanitary Sewer Fund 1,354,004
Clean Storm Water Fund 311,321
Permit Service Center Fund 1,979,790
Unified Program (CUPA) Fund 88,337
Subtotal Transfers to General Fund: $ 7,248,289

Page 79



Page 16 of 27

Transfer to Safety Members Pension Fund from General Fund

Transfer to Measure U1 Fund from General Fund

Transfer to Stability Reserve Fund from General Fund

Transfer to Catastrophic Reserve Fund from General Fund

Transfer to PERS Savings Fund from General Fund

Transfer to Health State Aid Realignment from General Fund

Transfer to Fair Election Fund from General Fund

Transfer to Capital Improvement Fund (CIP) from General Fund

Transfer to Phone System Replacement - VOIP from General Fund
Transfer to Equipment Replacement Fund from General Fund

Transfer to Public Liability Fund from General Fund

Transfer to Catastrophic Loss Fund from General Fund

Transfer to IT Cost Alloca